
Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee agenda - Wednesday, 19 October 2022 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steven Corrigan 
Telephone 07717 274704 
Email: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk  
Date: 7 October 2022 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Community Governance and Electoral 

Issues Committee 

 
will be held on Wednesday 19 October 2022 at 7.00 pm  
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 
Members of the Committee: 
Councillors: 
Ron Batstone (Chair) Alison Jenner 
Sarah Medley (Vice-Chair) Mike Pighills 
Paul Barrow Janet Shelley 
  

Substitutes: 
Councillors: 
Simon Howell Patrick O’Leary 
Diana Lugova Max Thompson 
Ben Mabbett Elaine Ware 
Robert Maddison Richard Webber 
 

 
An application to speak must be made in writing or by email to 
democratic services democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk  
by 5.00 pm on Tuesday 18 October 2022. 
 

To watch this meeting follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee agenda - Wednesday, 19 October 2022 

 Page 2 

Agenda 

 

Open to the public including the press 
 
1. Apologies for absence  
   
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 5 - 7)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Community Governance and Electoral Issues 
Committee minutes of the meeting held on 4 August 2022. 
 

3. Declarations of interest  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of interest 
in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.    
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
   
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and 
to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 

5. Public participation  
   
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.   
 

6. Community Governance Review - final recommendations  
(Pages 8 - 10)   
To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic and agree final 
recommendations on a number of community governance review matters – attached. 
 

7. Community Governance Review - Grove  
(Pages 11 - 14)   
 
 

8. Community Governance Review - Grove Technology Park  
(Pages 15 - 21)   
 
 

9. Community Governance Review - Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor 
and Fyfield and Tubney  

(Pages 22 - 32)   
 
 



Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee agenda - Wednesday, 19 October 2022 

 Page 3 

10. Community Governance Review - North Hinksey (parish name 
change)  

(Pages 33 - 37)   
 
 

11. Community Governance Review - South Hinksey and Kennington  
(Pages 38 - 49)   
 
 

12. Community Governance Review - Sunningwell (Wootton and 
Cumnor)  

(Pages 50 - 92)   
 
 

13. Community Governance Review - Uffington  
(Pages 93 - 95)   
 
 

14. Community Governance Review - Wootton  
(Pages 96 - 111)   
 
 

15. The timing of future community governance reviews  
   
The Local Government and Public Involvement and Health Act 2007 provides for principal 
councils to conduct a community governance review (CGR) at any time.  
  
The relevant guidance, issued by the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England and the Department for Communities and Local Government, suggests that 
principal councils will want to keep their community governance arrangements under 
review. The guidance goes on to offer the following advice on what might trigger a CGR: 

 it can be helpful to undertake community governance reviews in circumstances such 
as where there have been changes in population, or in reaction to specific or new 
local issues 

 communities may expand with new housing developments over time. This can often 
lead to existing parish boundaries becoming anomalous as new houses are built 
across the boundaries resulting in people being in different parishes from their 
neighbours. In such circumstances, the council should consider undertaking a 
community governance review  

 councils should exercise their discretion, but it is good practice to consider 
conducting a review every 10-15 years  

There is also provision for a community governance review to be triggered by a petition for 
the whole or part of the council’s area, but this is subject to rules around previous CGR's 
carried out by the principal council. 
  
In 2017 this committee agreed to undertake a community governance review every four 
years after the scheduled parish council elections, with any agreed changes implemented 
in time for the next scheduled elections.  
 
Officers experience since 2017 has been that undertaking reviews every four years is a 
very resource intensive for the elections team and other service teams which support the 
reviews.  Furthermore, undertaking a review every four years, generally invites parish 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/__data/assets/pdf_file/0019/10387/community-governance-review-guidance.pdf


Vale of White Horse District Councils 
Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee agenda - Wednesday, 19 October 2022 

 Page 4 

councils to consider and submit speculative requests often on a repeat basis. A number of 
the matters considered generate little interest from the public.   
 
The guidance states that principal councils should consider the benefits of undertaking a 
review of the whole of its area in one go, rather than carrying out small scale reviews in a 
piecemeal fashion of smaller areas, recognising that occasionally specific reviews, for 
example to adjust minor parish boundary anomalies, may be appropriate. Committing to 
undertake a review every four years is contrary to the above guidance, is unnecessary, 
and as can be seen from the most recent review, causes tension between parish councils.  
  
  

Officers firmly recommend that the council relies on the statutory guidance provided on the 
timing of a community governance review, including the provision for a district wide review 
every 10-15 years. The committee will know that it is perfectly acceptable and possible for 
specific reviews to be carried out to address anomalies.  
  

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the committee authorises the democratic services manager to carry out future reviews 
at timescales provided for in the government guidance in consultation with the chair of the 
committee.  
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 4 August 2022  CG.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Community Governance 

and Electoral Issues 

Committee  

 

held on Thursday 4 August 2022 at 7.00 pm 
in the First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, 
OX14 4SB  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
 
Members: Councillors Ron Batstone (Chair), Sarah Medley (Vice-Chair), Paul Barrow,  
and Alison Jenner 
 

Officers:  Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager  
 
Remote attendance:  
 
Officers: Susan Baker, Electoral Services Team Leader, Jordan Kennedy and Chris 
McMullin, Electoral Services Officers 
 

 
 

15. Apologies for absence  
 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Mike Pighills. 
 

16. Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held 
on 26 May 2022 and agree that the Chair signs them as such. 
 

17. Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 

18. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 4 August 2022  CG.2 

 

19. Public participation  
 
None. 
 

20. Community Governance Review - Harwell East Proposals  
 
The committee considered the report of the head of legal and democratic which 
invited it to consider proposals for consultation on the creation of a new parish. 
 
The committee was advised that Council had agreed, at its meeting held on 16 July 
2014, to establish a new parish. In doing so, Council agreed that the Community 
Governance and Electoral Issues Committee should determine the timing of the 
creation of the new parish. The committee had previously deferred consideration of 
the issue to allow for the community to grow and establish an identity and for further 
details regarding any unitary proposals for Oxfordshire to be discussed at that time. 
 
Having previously agreed to create a new parish the committee was invited to agree 
to undertake consultation with local residents and stakeholders on the following 
matters: 
 

 The name of the parish. 

 Whether the new parish should have a parish council or an alternative style of 
council (community, neighbourhood or village). 

 The ordinary year of elections. 

 The council size (number of councillors). 

 Whether the parish should be divided into wards. 
 
The committee welcomed progress on the implementation stage of the new parish. 
Although currently part of Harwell parish, the residents of the new area had a well-
defined separate community which justified the creation of a new parish. Committee 
members expressed the view that the working title name for the new parish of 
Harwell East may not best reflect the identity of the area. Residents in the area did 
not necessarily identify with or feel part of Harwell and in fact many identify with 
Didcot.         
 
Officers responded to questions from committee members as follows: 

 Confirmed that Harwell East was a working title and that consultees would be 
asked to propose more appropriate names for consideration. 

 The size of the parish council (number of parish councillors) could be 
reviewed in the future to reflect any increase in the size of the electorate. 

 There is currently no proposal to alter the number of parish councillors for 
Harwell Parish Council. 

 The results of the consultation will be reported to a subsequent meeting of this 
committee to make a final decision and authorise officers to make the relevant 
Reorganisation Order to establish the new parish. The committee would be 
asked to establish a shadow authority to take forward issues such as the 
setting of a precept, appointing a clerk and finding a venue for council 
meetings. 

 The establishment of the new parish will not impact on either the district ward 
or county division boundaries. 

Page 6



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee minutes  

Thursday, 4 August 2022  CG.3 

 The boundary of the parish would be along the side of the A34 bordering the 
new parish. 

 Clarification about which local authority had responsibility for the provision of 
parish boundary signs would be obtained.  

 
RESOLVED: to consult on the following:  
 

1. the name of the new parish with a working name proposal of Harwell East; 

2. the style of council with a proposal that it should be a parish council and be 
called Harwell East Parish Council; 

3. the effective date for the new council will be 1 April 2023, with elections for the 
new council to take place in May 2023; 

4. the size of the council with a proposal that it should have eight parish 
councillors; 

5. the warding arrangements for the council with a proposal that it should not be 
warded. 

 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7:26pm  
 
 

Page 7



 

 
1 

 

Community Governance and 

Electoral Issues Committee 
 

  
Report of head of legal and democratic 

Author: Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone:  07717 274704 

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 

To:  Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee  

DATE:  12 September 2022 

 

 

Community Governance Review – final 

recommendations  

Recommendations: To 

1. agree final recommendations in relation to each item subject to a community 
governance review, which are set out in the schedules attached to this report; 
and  

2. authorise the head of legal and democratic to make a reorganisation of 
community governance order to implement the changes agreed.  

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. To invite the committee to make final decisions in respect of a number of 
community governance reviews. 

Background 

2. This report represents the final element of the community governance review that 
the council commenced earlier this year.   The committee agreed to undertake a 
number of community governance reviews at its meeting in March 2022 and 
agreed terms of reference on matters submitted by parish councils.  The 
committee agreed draft proposals for consultation at its July meeting and also 
agreed revised terms of refence to provide for a longer consultation period and 
time to analyse the responses.  The process that the committee has been through 
to arrive at this point are set out in previous reports to the committee meetings held 
on 7 March and 26 May 2022 and the minutes of this meetings, and therefore the 
detail is not repeated in this report.   

3.  The committee is now invited to agree final recommendations for implementation.   

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 

 
2 

 

 

Final recommendations  

4. The consultation period on the committee’s draft proposals ran from 30 June until 
29 July 2022. Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council requested and 
was granted an extension until 2 August to allow the matter to be considered at its 
scheduled meeting on 1 August. The consultation was advertised via the media 
and council’s website. All parish councils directly impacted by a proposal were 
contacted directly. Notification of the engagement exercise with a link to the 
consultations was included in InFocus for district councillors and the Vale news for 
parish councils with a link to the consultation. A report summary of the 
engagement responses is attached for each review. 

5. A schedule covering each matter is attached with a recommendation and 
justification for the recommendation. 

6. Once the committee has taken final decisions, work will commence immediately to 
make the necessary order to bring the changes into effect in time for the 2023 
parish council elections. This will include making applications, if required, to the 
Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) to make related 
alteration orders to make district wards and county divisions coterminous with such 
changes. At its meeting on 13 July 2022, Council authorised the head of legal and 
democratic, in consultation with the Chair of this committee, to submit any such 
applications. 

7. In preparing the schedules for this meeting, officers clarified that the district council 
is unable to make recommendations on an alternative style of governance for 
existing parishes. This is a matter for the parish council to consider and decide by 
resolution. The committee is therefore unable to proceed with the request from 
North Hinksey Parish Council to change its style of parish from a parish council to 
a community council. Officers have advised North Hinksey Parish Council and 
confirmed that should it wish to alter its style it can take the matter forward. The 
committee is able to consider North Hinksey Parish Council’s request to alter the 
name of the parish. 

Financial Implications 

8. If the committee decides to make changes this will involve making legal orders, 
producing high quality maps to show any new boundaries and adjusting council tax 
records, specifically to cover the costs of transferring the council tax records of 
properties that move parish.  These costs will be met from existing budgets. 

Legal Implications 

9. The community governance review has been undertaken in accordance with the 
requirements laid down in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007 and the joint guidance on community governance reviews published by 
the Communities and Local Government Department and LGBCE in 2010. 

10. Once the order has been made, officers will request the LGBCE to make any 
related alterations order to make district wards and county divisions coterminous 
with any revised parish boundaries.   

Page 9



 

 
3 

 

Climate and Ecological Emergencies Implications 

11. There are no implications arising from this report. 

Risks and Options 

12. There is no statutory duty placed on the council to undertake community 
governance reviews, so the committee has the option at any time to cease work.  
However, given the stage now reached, there is no obvious reason why it would 
want to do this. 

13. There is a risk that someone could challenge the outcome of a particular review 
item through judicial review.  Council officers have mitigated against this by 
ensuring that at all times the council has followed the requirements laid down in the 
2007 Act and guidance.  

Conclusion 

14. The committee is invited to agree final decisions in respect of a number of 
community governance review matters having regard to the consultation 
responses and report schedules attached to this report.   

 

Background papers 

None 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 
 

CGR_A 

 

Parishes Affected 

Grove 
 

Matter to be considered 

Creating a single ward parish 
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
Grove North and Wantage and Grove Brook District Wards 
 

Committee’s draft proposal 
 
To create a single ward covering Grove for the purposes of parish council 
elections. 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation 

No responses were received opposing the proposal with three responses in 
support. 
 

Recommendation 

To create a single ward covering Grove for the purposes of parish council 
elections 
 

Justification for final recommendation 

The 16 parish councillors are elected to serve the whole parish.  The warding 
arrangements at parish level were introduced as a consequential effect of the 
district ward arrangements implemented by the Local Government Boundary 
Commission’s (LGBC) in 2015. Following the change to the parish boundary 
with Wantage in 2019, Grove parish has consisted of two wards – Grove 
Brook and Grove North. 
 
Grove is a largely homogenous settlement that does not readily lend itself to 
sub-division.  The parish electoral arrangements in existence prior to 2015 
appeared to serve the identities and interests of the village well and would do 
so again. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



Grove Community Governance Review: we'd like 
your feedback 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify 
anyone has been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further 
information on data protection is available in our general consultation’s privacy 
statement on our South or Vale website. 
 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

50.00% 4 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

  
 

12.50% 1 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

 0.00% 0 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

  
 

12.50% 1 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

  
 

12.50% 1 

7 Other (please specify):   
 

12.50% 1 

 
answered 8 

skipped 0 

Other (please specify): (1) 

1 Oxfordshire County Councillor for East Challow 
 

 
 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 4 

1 Vale Community Impact 

2 Vale of White Horse District Council 

3 East Challow Parish Council 

4 East Challow Parish Council 
 

 
answered 4 

skipped 4 

Page 12

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


 
 

3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 7 

 
answered 7 

skipped 1 

 
 

 4. Which proposal would you like to comment on: Tick all that apply.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 

Remove the warding 
arrangements for the 
parish of Grove, so that 
that the current two 
Grove wards are 
combined into one with 
16 seats 

  
 

37.50% 3 

2 

Make no change to the 
boundary between Grove 
Parish and East Challow 
Parish 

  
 

87.50% 7 

 
answered 8 

skipped 0 

 

 5. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to remove the warding 
arrangements for the parish of Grove, so that that the current two Grove wards are 
combined into one with 16 seats?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly support   
 

66.67% 2 

2 Tend to support   
 

33.33% 1 

3 Neither support nor oppose  0.00% 0 

4 Tend to oppose  0.00% 0 

5 Strongly oppose  0.00% 0 

6 Not sure  0.00% 0 

7 I don't have a view  0.00% 0 

 
answered 3 

skipped 5 

 

Page 13



 

6. If you have selected tend to oppose or strongly oppose, please outline your 
reason(s) below.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 0.00% 0 

No answers found. 

 
answered 0 

skipped 8 

 
 

7. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  

File Type 
Average 

Size 
Files 

Uploaded 

To view the files uploaded, go into the individual results. 
answered 0 

skipped 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 
 

CGR_B 

 

Parishes Affected 

Grove, East Challow 
 

Matter to be considered 

Amending the boundary of Grove parish to include Grove Business Park, 
currently in East Challow parish. 
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
Affects Grove North and Ridgeway district wards 
 
Affects Grove and Wantage and Shrivenham county divisions 
 

Proposal agreed by the Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee on 26 May 2022 for consultation 

To consult on a proposal not to include Grove Business Park within Grove 
parish. 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation 

These are set out in the engagement summary document. 
 
East Challow Parish Council supports the committee’s draft proposal. As do 
the county councillor and district councillor for the Ridgeway ward. 
 

Recommendation 

To make no change to the parish boundary between East Challow and Grove 
parishes. 
 

Justification for final recommendation 

In accordance with the assessment criterion that boundaries be aligned with 
defining natural or structural features, alignment of the parish boundary with 
Downsview Road provides a good man-made structure.  A boundary fence, 
whilst effective in its current position, is not a permanent structure. 
 
The proposal to include the technology park within Grove parish does not 
impact on any properties and therefore does not impact community identity. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



Grove and East Challow Community Governance 
Review: we'd like your feedback 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify 
anyone has been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further 
information on data protection is available in our general consultation’s privacy 
statement on our South or Vale website. 
 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

50.00% 4 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

  
 

12.50% 1 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

 0.00% 0 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

  
 

12.50% 1 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

  
 

12.50% 1 

7 Other (please specify):   
 

12.50% 1 

 
answered 8 

skipped 0 

Other (please specify): (1) 

1 Oxfordshire County Councillor for East Challow 
 

 
 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 4 

1 Vale Community Impact 

2 Vale of White Horse District Council 

3 East Challow Parish Council 

4 East Challow Parish Council 
 

 
answered 4 

skipped 4 

Page 16

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


 
 

3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 7 

 
answered 7 

skipped 1 

 

 4. Which proposal would you like to comment on: Tick all that apply.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 

Remove the warding 
arrangements for the 
parish of Grove, so that 
that the current two 
Grove wards are 
combined into one with 
16 seats 

  
 

37.50% 3 

2 

Make no change to the 
boundary between Grove 
Parish and East Challow 
Parish 

  
 

87.50% 7 

 
answered 8 

skipped 0 

 

8. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to make no change to the boundary 
between Grove Parish and East Challow Parish?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly support   
 

71.43% 5 

2 Tend to support  0.00% 0 

3 Neither support nor oppose  0.00% 0 

4 Tend to oppose   
 

14.29% 1 

5 Strongly oppose  0.00% 0 

6 Not sure  0.00% 0 

7 I don't have a view   
 

14.29% 1 

 
answered 7 

skipped 1 

 

Page 17



9. If you have any comments to support or oppose the proposal, please provide them 
below:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 5 

1 There was no sensible case for change, and no consideration made to unanticipated negative impacts 
on the existing parish. Keeping the boundaries in place is sensible.  

2 I am District Councillor for Ridgeway Ward and live in East Challow. 
Grove Business Park was launched in the 1980’s as Wantage Technology Park showing that its link 
was not considered to be with Grove. Its name was only changed after the original owner, BNF Metals 
Technology Centre, went into receivership and the new owners re-launched it with a new name to make 
a break with its past history.  
The proposed change is entirely unnecessary, and I cannot see any particular reason for it whether this 
be financial or business-related. I can only think that it is a matter of kudos in having a fairly important 
local cluster of companies associated with Grove.  
I want to make several points: 
1. East Challow parish already has a good and productive working relationship with the Business Park. I 
have been in contact with all the major businesses there during the last 3 years and I have established 
a good working relationship with a number of them, including help during the Covid crisis and sending 
them regular reports which is appreciated. I took David Johnston MP around the Park and introduced 
him to some of the exciting companies active in precision engineering, metal extraction and recovery 
and business incubation, in addition to a national business management company with 900 staff, set up 
and run by an East Challow resident. I am currently trying to encourage companies and the landlord to 
begin installing solar panels to reduce costs and contribute to the zero-neutral-by-2030 target.  
2. Most of the companies have no idea in which parish they are situated and it means very little to them. 
Many staff live in East Challow and other local villages. 
3. Great play is made of the distance by road between the Park and East Challow. This was not always 
the case and, should the western relief road be built, which is likely to happen sometime in the future, it 
will again not be the case. 
4. The eastern boundary of the parish (Downsview Road) runs down the eastern side of the Business 
Park and is a natural boundary. 
5. Planning issues relating to Grove Business Park do not affect Grove to any greater extent than its 
neighbouring parishes. 
6. The change would unnecessarily affect the district ward and county division boundaries since there 
are no residents on the Business Park. 

3 Over more than thirty years there has been regular boundary reviews in which East Challow Parish has 
been forced to defend its boundaries against claims from the neighbouring parishes of Grove and 
Wantage. In every one the larger parish has gained land and housing at our expense. 
 
Grove Parish Council has been claiming that Grove Technology Park should be transferred into its 
parish with no valid reason since at least 1999. 
 
The site itself is closer to the village of East Challow and the current main entrance is on the very edge 
of the southern Grove boundary with Wantage. Downsview Road which runs west from the Mably Way 
roundabout to the business park makes the perfect boundary between the Parishes. Traffic from the 
north completely skirts Grove on the A338 and going south, east or west it has to pass through the 
centre of either Wantage or East Challow. 
 
Any future development can now only be to the west at the existing exit on Woodhill Lane (which was 
the historical main airfield access) as over the last ten years the site has become almost encircled by 
housing. A direct access west to the A417 and then on to the A420 towards the M4 or M40 is possible 
especially if the “west link” road is built. 
 
The local communities of East Challow, Wantage and Grove are equally affected by developments on 
Grove Technology Park and are invited to comment on any planning applications relating to it. Any 
planning issues relating to Grove Technology Park do not affect Grove to any greater extent than its 
neighbouring parishes. 
 
Grove Business Park was launched as a business park in the 1980’s under the name Wantage 
Technology Park showing that its link was not considered to be with Grove. Its name was only changed 
after the original owner BNF Metals Technology Centre went into receivership and the new owners re-
launched it with a new name to make a break with its past history. 
 
East Challow Parish Council has considered the following assessment criteria relating to the review and 

Page 18



9. If you have any comments to support or oppose the proposal, please provide them 
below:  

can see no issues which are relevant to the Grove Parish Council request for a boundary change. 
 
• natural or man-made boundaries that help to define clearly one community from another 
• housing developments that straddle parish boundaries, thereby resulting in people being in different 
parishes from their neighbours 
• effective and convenient representation of local residents at parish level • the wards of Vale of White 
Horse District Council for the purposes of district council elections • the divisions of Oxfordshire County 
Council for the purposes of county council elections 
• views expressed in relation to any changes, particularly from those people directly affected 
• the extent to which proposals reflect the identities and interests of the affected community elections 
• the size and population of the local community 
 
Grove Parish Council’s comment that “some” businesses think they are already in Grove parish is noted 
although a recent business survey carried out for East Challow Neighbourhood Plan indicated that 
nearly all companies were satisfied with their situation. 25% of employees on the two industrial estates 
in East Challow parish (The W&G Estate and Grove Technology Park) live in East Challow parish. Over 
the last few years many productive contacts with Grove Technology Park have been made by East 
Challow councillors. East Challow Parish Council has been very supportive of the businesses when 
planning applications have been received. We do our best to support business development whilst 
ensuring plans are appropriate. 
 
East Challow Parish Council therefore asks that in the current boundary review the Vale of White Horse 
District Council supports the existing arrangements and does not allow larger parishes to continually 
“asset strip” small parishes. There is no reason why Grove Technology Park should not continue to be 
part of East Challow parish. 

4 As County Cllr for East Challow I strongly support making NO CHANGE to the parish boundary 
between Grove Parish and east Challow Parish. 
 
There are NO REASONS to make any change: none have been declared and none have been agreed 
by any decision-making body over a number of years. 
 
There are good reasons NOT to make any change : in future response to housing development around 
East Challow and Grove there will be a need for a western relief road from near the Grove Technology 
Park roundabout to the A417. This road ( alreadt oproposed by one developer) will impact East Challow 
residents, and it is right that the East Challow Parish Council will be the relevant council to respond to 
the proposals for any Western Relief Road. 

5 East Challow Parish Council notes the proposal to make no change to the Grove/East Challow Parish 
boundary and would welcome/support this decision. 
 
We reiterate the comments made in advance of the review which are as follows:-  
Over more than thirty years there has been regular boundary reviews in which East Challow Parish has 
been forced to defend its boundaries against claims from the neighbouring parishes of Grove and 
Wantage. In every one the larger parish has gained land and housing at our expense. 
 
Grove Parish Council has been claiming that Grove Technology Park should be transferred into its 
parish with no valid reason since at least 1999. 
 
The site itself is closer to the village of East Challow and the current main entrance is on the very edge 
of the southern Grove boundary with Wantage. Downsview Road which runs west from the Mably Way 
roundabout to the business park makes the perfect boundary between the Parishes. Traffic from the 
north completely skirts Grove on the A338 and going south, east or west it has to pass through the 
centre of either Wantage or East Challow. 
 
Any future development can now only be to the west at the existing exit on Woodhill Lane (which was 
the historical main airfield access) as over the last ten years the site has become almost encircled by 
housing. A direct access west to the A417 and then on to the A420 towards the M4 or M40 is possible 
especially if the “west link” road is built. 
 
The local communities of East Challow, Wantage and Grove are equally affected by developments on 
Grove Technology Park and are invited to comment on any planning applications relating to it. Any 
planning issues relating to Grove Technology Park do not affect Grove to any greater extent than its 
neighbouring parishes. 

Page 19



9. If you have any comments to support or oppose the proposal, please provide them 
below:  

Grove Business Park was launched as a business park in the 1980’s under the name Wantage 
Technology Park showing that its link was not considered to be with Grove. Its name was only changed 
after the original owner BNF Metals Technology Centre went into receivership and the new owners re-
launched it with a new name to make a break with its past history. 
 
East Challow Parish Council has considered the following assessment criteria relating to the review and 
can see no issues which are relevant to the Grove Parish Council request for a boundary change. 
 
• natural or man-made boundaries that help to define clearly one community from another 
• housing developments that straddle parish boundaries, thereby resulting in people being in different 
parishes from their neighbours 
• effective and convenient representation of local residents at parish level • the wards of Vale of White 
Horse District Council for the purposes of district council elections • the divisions of Oxfordshire County 
Council for the purposes of county council elections 
• views expressed in relation to any changes, particularly from those people directly affected 
• the extent to which proposals reflect the identities and interests of the affected community elections 
• the size and population of the local community 
 
 
Grove Parish Council’s comment that “some” businesses think they are already in Grove parish is noted 
although a recent business survey carried out for East Challow Neighbourhood Plan indicated that 
nearly all companies were satisfied with their situation. 25% of employees on the two industrial estates 
in East Challow parish (The W&G Estate and Grove Technology Park) live in East Challow parish. Over 
the last few years many productive contacts with Grove Technology Park have been made by East 
Challow councillors. East Challow Parish Council has been very supportive of the businesses when 
planning applications have been received. We do our best to support business development whilst 
ensuring plans are appropriate. 
 
East Challow Parish Council therefore asks that in the current boundary review the Vale of White Horse 
District Council supports the existing arrangements and does not allow larger parishes to continually 
“asset strip” small parishes. There is no reason why Grove Technology Park should not continue to be 
part of East Challow parish. 
 

 

 
answered 5 

skipped 3 

 

10. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  

File Type 
Average 

Size 
Files 

Uploaded 

To view the files uploaded, go into the individual results. 
answered 0 

skipped 8 

 

11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Grove and 
East Challow Community Governance Review 2022?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 3 

1 No 

Page 20



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Grove and 
East Challow Community Governance Review 2022?  

2 Both the County Councilor Yvonne Constance and District Councilor Paul Barrow are in favour of the 
boundary to remain as it is and not to change. 

3 make NO CHANGE! 
 

 
answered 3 

skipped 5 

 
 
 

Page 21



 
 

CGR_C 

 

Parishes Affected 

Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor and Fyfield and Tubney 

 

Matter to be considered 

Amending the parish boundary east of Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor to 
include land currently in Fyfield and Tubney parish.  
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
Affects Kingston Bagpuize and Thames district wards 
 

Proposal agreed by the Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee on 26 May 2022 for consultation 

To consult on a proposal to make no change to the current boundary between 
Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor and Fyfield and Tubney parish.  
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation  

Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council requested the boundary 
change. 
 
Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council opposes the change to the boundary. 
 
Of those who responded to the consultation 20 respondents strongly 
supported no change with 8 strongly opposing the proposal to make no 
change.   
 

Recommendation 

To make no change to the current boundary between Kingston Bagpuize with 
Southmoor and Fyfield and Tubney parish.  
 

Justification for recommendation 

Whilst the land in question is included in the Local Plan, a recent application 
for housing was refused.  A further outline planning application has been 
submitted but is yet to be determined. The case for changing the boundary 
rests on whether planning permission is granted. If it is not, there is little case 
for a change and therefore the request is considered premature. In addition, 
the committee would not have the opportunity to consider the views of people 
directly affected by the proposed change in advance of any development.  

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



 
 

 
The area lies in a rural location. The current boundary between the parishes 
reflects the “no man’s land” between communities providing a natural easily 
identifiable boundary between the communities.  
 
 

Page 23



Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Community 
Governance Review: we'd like your feedback 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify 
anyone has been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further 
information on data protection is available in our general consultation’s privacy 
statement on our South or Vale website. 
 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

91.43% 32 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

 0.00% 0 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

  
 

5.71% 2 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

 0.00% 0 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

  
 

2.86% 1 

7 Other (please specify):  0.00% 0 

 
answered 35 

skipped 0 

Other (please specify): (0) 

No answers found. 

 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 2 

1 Personal View 

2 Fyfield & Tubney Parish Council 
 

 
answered 2 

skipped 33 

 

Page 24

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 34 

 
answered 34 

skipped 1 

  
 

4. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to make no change to the boundary 
of Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor and Fyfield and Tubney Parish?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly support   
 

57.14% 20 

2 Tend to support   
 

2.86% 1 

3 Neither support or oppose   
 

8.57% 3 

4 Tend to oppose   
 

2.86% 1 

5 Strongly oppose   
 

22.86% 8 

6 Not sure   
 

2.86% 1 

7 I don't have a view   
 

2.86% 1 

 
answered 35 

skipped 0 

 
 

5. If you have selected tend to oppose or strongly oppose, please outline your 
reason(s) below.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 17 

1 Unsure as the impact of this relating to the stupid proposals to build 600 house on land east of 
Kingston Bagpuize  

2 Because the new Lioncourt development on the land to the south of the A420 will impact Kingston 
Bagpuize/Southmoor considerably more than Tubney or Fyfield. Therefore, the residents of Kingston 
Bagpuize should have the Lioncourt residents' Council Tax contributions so that, via the Parish 
Council, the village can introduce or influence decisions taken about the development - pre-planning 
and post sales.  
The safty of road traffic and pedestrians (to and from bus stops, going to school, etc) on the sections 
of the A420 and A415 in this area must be improved if more housing is being introduced and it is only 
likely to happen if one Parish Council is responsible for this area. 

3 We strongly support keeping the boundary as it is; there is no need to change the boundaries. This is 
merely an attempt by Lioncourt to garner support for an untenable development on this land, which 
has no local support and to which we have raised numerous worrying concerns. These objections 
have been completely ignored by Lioncourt. 

Page 25



5. If you have selected tend to oppose or strongly oppose, please outline your 
reason(s) below.  

4 There is no logic to the proposal, except the desire for Kingston Bagpuize to subsequently wave 
through a controversial planning application for that land and for them to receive the benefits in terms 
of investments from the developers, while leaving the residents of Fyfield and Tubney to deal with the 
negative impact of the development. Since Kingston Bagpuize already has a by-pass for the A420, 
they are sheltered from the worst traffic impacts that the new development would create. This is a very 
cynical proposal by Kingston Bagpuize 

5 I am the Treasurer of the KBS News and we publish a magazine to every house in the village each 
month at no charge. Doing this requires our small team to be aware of what is going on in the Village 
and endeavouring to keep resident informed. July 2022 edition attached. 
 
The Boundary Change between Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish and Fyfield & Tubney 
Parish is a completely sensible request. 
 
The land in question is divided from Fyfield Village by the Dual carriageway A420 but abuts directly 
onto Kingston Bagpuize Village.  
 
The VOWHDC is currently considering a planning application to build, on the land covered by the 
requested Boundary Change, 660 houses, an extra care development of up to 70 units, a local centre 
of up to 0.5ha, a one form entry primary school on an area for educational provision of up to 2.2ha, 
playing field and car parking, informal open space. The application is entitled Land East of Kingston 
Bagpuize. Not South of Fyfield. 
 
Both Parishes have expressed their objection to the development but it is clear that at some point in 
the near future the building will go ahead. 
 
Fyfield Village has a Church and a Pub but no other facilities whereas Kingston Bagpuize with 
Southmoor has 2 Coop shops, one of which includes a post office, a One Stop shop, a Village hall, a 
public park area (the Millennium Green), a Tennis Club, a Bowls Club, a Football Club, a Cricket Club, 
a Scouting Group and many clubs and societies. We also have a Pub and a Church. 
 
The proposed planning application includes connecting all the new properties to Thames Water's 
sewage plant in Southmoor. None of the Fyfield and Tubney properties do this. 
 
Fyfield is a delightful village but it is obvious that if the proposed development goes ahead the new 
residents will want to use Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor facilities. Many of the present Fyfield and 
Tubney residents already do. 
 
It is obvious that the boundary should be changed to bring everything under the Kingston Bagpuize 
with SouthmoorParish.  
 
It appears that the VOWHDC Planning dept believe the new development will be part of Kingston 
Bagpuize with Southmoor having recently asked the Parish Council to consider whether it will be 
prepared to adopt the proposed Public open spaces, Sports field and Pavilion should the planning 
application be approved. 

6 The Parish Council has previously vigorously opposed this change and fully supports the decision not 
to make the change. 
 
Conformation of our opposition is detailed in the attached document. 

7 If it changes risk of more houses being built and don’t have infrastructure to deal with it 

8 it's ridiculous to move this boundary to make kbs even bigger when we have no local surgery, schools 
are maxed out busses are worse than useless no pharmacy services or post office choosing which day 
they fancy opening!  

9 As the boundary change will lead to a huge housing development in the area with lots of wildlife and 
no infrastructure to support the influx of people it is not acceptable 

10 Why not leave as Tubney/ Fyfield? It’s on the edge of KBS actually in Tubney/Fyfield and would make 
more sense to leave in the current parish. KBS has quadrupled in size in the last 6 yrs. the other 
parish hasn’t. Even some of the KBS is classed as Longworth whilst the actual Longworth is the other 
side of the A420 to KBS. Very stupid and confusing for delivery drivers - now the PC wants to stick 
Tubney in too. The PC would be better changing the boundary from Longworth to Southmoor at the 
Faringdon end of the village so that longworth is on one side only of the A420. But no they’re dipping 
in somewhere else instead of sorting out existing issues. I want to live in a village not a small town 

Page 26



5. If you have selected tend to oppose or strongly oppose, please outline your 
reason(s) below.  

which KBS is becoming. KBS roads are busier, yet no more facilities such as doctors or dentist or 
even a chemist. Keep it as it is or are the Tubney/Fyfield parishioners with money worried a new 
estate in their small tiny parish will suffer on their house prices? <redacted>.  

11 The villages are big enough and we have to make sure they do not become one urban sprawl  

12 it would be better in general 

13 To allow essential services provision to be under control of KBS parish when new homes are built on 
the land because the residents will tend to rely on KBS rather than Fyfield & Tubney. 

14 I oppose the boundary change. The parishes with Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor have had more 
than their share of housing developments. We do not need anymore. 

15 If I line with KBS parish, hopefully no further land development would be granted on stated plot.  

16 The village of Kingston Bagpuize and Southmoor is already large enough. 

17 The recent developments in KB&S is excessive, especially with no Appropriate infrastructure in place. 
The nearest larger supermarket is many miles away as are facilities for Doctors, Dentists, Chemist. 
The road systems with our present SMALL Coop outlet at the mini roundabout with WitneyRoad on the 
A415 is likely to result in a very serious accident that is waiting to happen. The vehicle access on this 
route is likely to increase dramatically, with the changes of large commercial vehicles excess passing 
through Marcham - Air Quality, so again the residents of KB&S have to suffer, if these changes take 
place. The changes are likely to create further increase traffic flow. 
This change, will again create financial issues with KB&S Parish Council. 
If this change results in the building of 700 further houses, the changes to the road system requires 
changing, along with a Medical Centre, which is apparently not included. 

 

 
answered 17 

skipped 18 

 
 

6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary with Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor 
and Fyfield and Tubney Parish?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 10 

1 If this relates to the proposed building of 600 houses on land east of Kingston Bagpuize then I’d like 
register my disapproval for these plans. The local infrastructure, specifically the traffic on the A420 
simply cannot handle this development. Let alone the impact on the rural area. This is a beautiful 
part of the county that does not need these houses 

2 We support wholeheartedly and without reservation the proposal to make NO CHANGE to the 
boundary. 

3 There is an application to build more than 650 houses in the area subject to the boundary review. If 
this goes ahead it would dominate Fyfield and Tunney. The land should therefore remain in F&T so 
that we can at least benefit from CIL/S106 monies, although the entire parish is extremely strongly 
opposed to the development - it's quite out of place and inappropriate for a rural area. There are 
many other reasons, not least the loss of high grade agricultural land at a time when we need to 
increase UK food production. 

4 None whatsoever 

5 leave the boundary where it is and do not build more houses in a high unemployment area there's 
nothing here for families to do so why build more expensive family homes  

6 I fully support NO change to the parish boundary. 
The change proposed is unsustainable, increasing the strain on the already limited facilities & 

Page 27



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary with Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor 
and Fyfield and Tubney Parish?  

infrastructure in KBS. 
I am pleased that no change is now being fully discussed. 

7 No 

8 KBS parish Council have failed to hold the agreement to take on common areas of bloor Kingston 
Park Estate, resulting in an upcoming increase on estate management fees for all residents. Should 
this new boundary be changed or not, it is hard to have faith in their management of the locality.  

9 The request from Kingston Bagpuize Parish Council to cede the proposed land in from Fyfield & 
Tubney Parish is nothing short of scandalous method of placing themselves (KBS) in-line for 
requesting future CIL monies. This pecuniary request should be seen for what it is; simply a means 
to sell genuine infrastructure reservations on traffic and air quality in return for cash.  
 
Fyfield & Tubney Parish Council and FLAG have genuine and clearly reasoned arguments for the 
defence of this land from developers and should be applauded for taking a principled stand. The land 
is part of Fyfield Parish and should remain so. 

10 Gerrymandering of worst sort in a backdoor effort to facilitate the urbanisation of our community- a 
move opposed by ALL residents of this Parish. 

 

 
answered 10 

skipped 25 

 
 

7. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  

File Type 
Average 

Size 
Files 

Uploaded 

.pdf 6422806.5Kb 2 

To view the files uploaded, go into the individual results. 
answered 2 

skipped 33 

 
Please see attached supporting documentation uploaded. 

  
 

8. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Kingston 
Bagpuize with Southmoor Community Governance Review 2022?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 11 

1 Don’t allow these houses to be built. The A420 between tubney and Kingston Bagpuize is far too 
busy as it is.  

2 There should be no change to the parish boundary. This is being driven by a CIL tax grab not a 
genuine reason. 

3 I do regularly attend the Parish Council monthly meetings and feel confident that the Parish Council 
is doing a good job for the residents within it's powers and financial limitations. 

4 Please consider additional infrastructure & amenities for the already hugely expanded villages of 
Kingston Bagpuize and Southmoor. 

Page 28



8. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Kingston 
Bagpuize with Southmoor Community Governance Review 2022?  

A Dr's surgery is desperately needed. 
The roads need to be upgraded (dualing from Swindon to Oxford). 

5 I would like council tax banding standardised and looked at. I feel there is a real discrepancy 
between bands dependant upon year of build. You don’t get any support when you move in and 
appeal.  

6 <redacted>  

7 As the village is expanding so much, it seems very strange that some of the addresses at the far end 
of the village are still Longworth addresses, when the A420 was built in it's current form, ages ago. 
Would also be nice to see some more facilities available to people who live there. There should be a 
doctor's surgery and a proper post office. A lot of elderly people live in the village and often struggle 
to get their prescriptions. Seems like the village is going backwards in a lot of things.  

8 no 

9 No 

10 Should the boundary change, it should be protected from further development. Uphold agreements 
made and support residents of the community by adopting the local common areas.  

11 The request from Kingston Bagpuize Parish Council to cede the proposed land in from Fyfield & 
Tubney Parish is nothing short of scandalous method of placing themselves (KBS) in-line for 
requesting future CIL monies. This pecuniary request should be seen for what it is; simply a means 
to sell genuine infrastructure reservations on traffic and air quality in return for cash.  
 
Fyfield & Tubney Parish Council and FLAG have genuine and clearly reasoned arguments for the 
defence of this land from developers and should be applauded for taking a principled stand. The land 
is part of Fyfield & Tubney Parish and should remain so. 

 

 
answered 11 

skipped 24 

 
 
 

Page 29



 

Page 30



Proposed boundary change:

Transfer of Land East of Kingston Bagpuize from Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council to 
Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council

Boundaries 

Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council encompasses an area that currently straddles the A420 
(please see attached map). The Parish has operated effectively since the A420 Kingston 
Bagpuize bypass was built in the 1990s, and the residents use the local road network for 
most of their daily activities.

The proposed Lioncourt development would become another residential area which would 
be part of the parish. Noting that it would be situated a significant distance from the edge of
Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor and a very long way from most of its amenities (current 
primary school, shops etc.), its residents would also have to rely on use of the local road 
network for most of their needs. The plans associated with the development acknowledge 
this fact by highlighting the need for road infrastructure to be put in place in order to allow 
the new residents to move in and out easily and join the local road networks. 

It is not therefore the case that this new community would be in any way integrated into the
KBS Parish, but instead its residents would be in a similar position to all the other residents 
of Fyfield and Tubney PC. Significant parts of the proposed new development would in fact 
be closer to the centre of Fyfield than the centre of Kingston Bagpuize/Southmoor. 
Therefore the boundary change would be arbitrary, going against the natural boundary set 
by the old Roman Aelfrith Ditch that has defined the separation of the two parishes, and 
with no obvious logistical or functional reasons to support its introduction.

Finally, if a boundary change were to come into effect, it would effectively cut off the parts 
of Fyfield and Tubney Parish situated in the south of the proposed new development, and 
this would clearly be detrimental to the Fyfield and Tubney parishioners residing there.

Future development

There is currently no formal authority for the development to proceed except its inclusion in
the current Local Plan, but with strict conditions to be fulfilled before it can go ahead.

When planning application for this development was submitted recently, ignoring the 
fulfilment of these conditions, objections were recorded by all public bodies providing 
services, namely transport, health and education, on the basis that these services could not 
be adequately provided locally.

Efforts in opposing the development have been successful to date and as regards 
representing the local communities, these efforts have been led primarily by Fyfield and 
Tubney Parish Council, with tremendous support and input from residents of the Parish.

The negative effects of the development, particularly on the local roads, will be felt more in 
Fyfield, Tubney and other neighbouring communities than in Kingston Bagpuize/Southmoor.
Consequently, any works to alleviate these will have to be financed mainly from Fyfield and 
Tubney Parish Council funds.

Page 31



Proposed change

The formal Examination process that took place in 2018 led to very clear recommendations 
by the Inspector, Mr Reed, including specifically the requirement for significant 
improvements in the local infrastructure to be completed before further consideration for 
this development.

This is the accepted position at the moment and therefore considering boundary changes on
the basis of this proposed development is premature. Furthermore, if a development were 
to go ahead in any form in the future, it would certainly be a standalone community and in 
no way a natural extension of the current Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor “larger village”
which in any case has recently seen the greatest expansion of all other larger villages in the 
area.

Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council firmly believes that it would be unwise to have this land 
taken away from our parish, if we are to make sure that our local area’s and residents’ 
interests and potential needs are fairly represented both now and in the future.

In any case, Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council has entered positive discussions with 
Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council with a view to agreeing to co-operate in a 
constructive manner should this or other similar developments were to go ahead in any 
form in due course.

Fyfield and Tubney Parish Council

July 2022

Page 32



 
 

CGR_D 

 

Parishes Affected 

North Hinksey 
 

Matter to be considered 

To change the name of the parish from North Hinksey parish to Botley and 
North Hinksey parish.  
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
None 
 

Proposal agreed by the Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee on 26 May 2022 for consultation 

To consult on a proposal to rename North Hinksey parish Botley and North 
Hinksey parish. 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation  

Of the 20 consultation responses 12 strongly support the change with three 
tending to support the proposed parish name change. Three strongly oppose 
the proposed change with one tending to oppose it. 
 

Recommendation 

To rename the parish Botley and North Hinksey parish. 
 

Justification for the final recommendation 

The inclusion of Botley in the parish name will better reflect the geography 
and community it covers. Road signs in the area read “North Hinksey 
(Botley)”, there is a Botley & North Hinksey Community website, Botley is 
reflected in postal addresses and both Botley and North Hinksey are referred 
to individually or together by community groups and facilities within the parish. 
 
 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



North Hinksey Community Governance Review: 
we'd like your feedback 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify 
anyone has been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further 
information on data protection is available in our general consultation’s privacy 
statement on our South or Vale website. 
 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

80.00% 16 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

  
 

5.00% 1 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

 0.00% 0 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

  
 

15.00% 3 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

 0.00% 0 

7 Other (please specify):  0.00% 0 

 
answered 20 

skipped 0 

Other (please specify): (0) 

No answers found. 
 

 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 1 

1 Vale Community Impact 

 

 
answered 1 

skipped 19 

 

Page 34

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 20 

 
answered 20 

skipped 0 

 
 

4. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to:  

Answer Choices 
Strongly 
support 

Tend to 
support 

Neither 
support 

or 
oppose 

Tend 
to 

oppose 

Strongly 
oppose 

Not 
sure 

I don't 
have a 
view 

Response 
Total 

include ‘Botley’ within 
the name of the 
parish i.e. ‘Botley and 
North Hinksey Parish 
Council’ 

60.00% 
12 

15.00% 
3 

5.00% 
1 

5.00% 
1 

15.00% 
3 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

20 

 
answered 20 

skipped 0 

 
 
 

 
 
 

5. If you have any comments to support or oppose the proposal to include ‘Botley’ within the 
name of the parish i.e. ‘Botley and North Hinksey Parish Council’, please provide them 
below:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 10 

Page 35



5. If you have any comments to support or oppose the proposal to include ‘Botley’ within the 
name of the parish i.e. ‘Botley and North Hinksey Parish Council’, please provide them 
below:  

1 This seems sensible. I have no strong views  

2 Always wondered why Botley was not included or the main name. Why continue to use the North Hinksey? 

3 Most of the area is Botley - it reflects reality 

4 (a) I am strongly opposed to including the name 'Botley' within the name of North Hinksey Parish Council. 
 
(b) I prefer the name of the council to reflect a defined geographical area, in this case the Parish of North 
Hinksey.  
 
(c) Inclusion of the name Botley risks confusion with New Botley, Botley Road, Old Botley and parts of 
Cumnor Parish which are sometimes referred to as Botley (e.g. Dean Court, Deanfield, Fogwell and Lower 
Cumnor Hill). 
 
(d) The proposed new name is not inclusive. Although it contains the names of Botley and North Hinksey it 
excludes other areas such as Harcourt Hill, Elms Rise and Tilbury Fields. 

5 The Parish boundary is in the wrong place. The busy A34 dual carriageway has been the effective physical 
and social barrier between Botley and North Hinksey Village/North Hinksey lane for 50 years. Nobody from 
North Hinksey or North Hinksey lane is represented on the Parish Council. Moreover the high-handed and 
undemocratic behaviour of the small cotterie of Botley residents comprising the controlling "Councillors For 
Our Community" politiocal party is deeply resented within North Hinksey Lane and North Hinksey 
Village.Local resident object to NHPC's interference with the community's use of the Village Green, their 
inability to mow it without letters of complaint, the threat posed by NHPC to this precious green space and 
their appalling eviction of the local scout group, which is the largest and most vibrant community group in 
the parish.  

6 Despite many requests at North Hinksey Parish Council meetings no one has ever been able to state 
where 'Botley' actually is and that North Hinksey has a boundary but 'Botley' does not. It is therefore 
pointless to change the name as it would have no meaning. 

7 I strongly support changing the name to include the phrase "Botley and North Hinksey", as this would give 
a much more accurate reflection of the population that the council represents. 

8 The inclusion of Botley demonstrates that the Council represents Botley too. This is important as Botley is 
see as distinct from North Hinksey. 

9 I have lived in the parish for almost 18 years and Botley is what I use in my address and when speaking 
about where I live in common with my neighbours. When we talk about North Hinksey we mean North 
Hinksey village which is part of the parish but just one part. I helped set up the Botley and North Hinksey 
Community website in 2012 and we were clear to list Botley clearly as the location covered. I have been a 
parish councillor since 2015 and find it frustrating that the name of the Council can be misleading and is 
not inclusive of the majority of parishioners. 

10 North Hinksey is seen as being the area around North Hinksey lane, east of the A34. Most people in the 
parish live in Botley / Elms Rise 

 

 
answered 10 

skipped 10 

 
 

Page 36



6. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  

File Type 
Average 

Size 
Files 

Uploaded 

To view the files uploaded, go into the individual results. 
answered 0 

skipped 20 

 
  
 

7. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the North Hinksey 
Community Governance Review 2022?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 4 

1 The recommendation arising from the first consultation was further consultation on the proposal. 
However, this consultation document states: "Following comments received during the previous 
consultation, the Vale’s Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee has agreed to amend 
the name of North Hinksey parish to include the name Botley and to alter the status of the parish to a 
community council". Why is the committee asking for consultation responses if it has already made a 
decision?  
 
During the previous consultation there were 8 responses. 5 disagreed or strongly disagreed with the 
proposed changes (62.5%) and 3 agreed or strongly agreed (37.5%). Why did the committee agree to 
amend the name and status of the council if the outcome of the initial consultation was against the 
changes?  
 
If the current consultation shows a majority in favour of retaining the name and/or status of North 
Hinksey Parish Council, will the Vale’s Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee 
respect that outcome and retain the name and/or status as appropriate? 

2 NHPC is fundamentally undemocratic, abusing its power to rig local consutations to obtain the desired 
results, ignoring local opinions, controlling local media and harrassing any councillors or members of 
the public who object to this. There is every reason to believe the behaviour of some councillors is 
fraudulent or illegal in other respects. Multiple complaints to VWHDC are routinely brushed aside. 
NHPC is arguably the worst governed parish council in the country.  

3 Yes, it is a waste of time and money in a period when other matters should take priority. 

4 I am surprised to hear of these proposals for the first time on the day before the deadline for 
comments. If it was not for a brief notice today on the Botley Facebook page, I would have known 
nothing about it. 

 

 
answered 4 

skipped 16 

  
 
  
 
 

Page 37



 
 

CGR_E 

 

Parishes Affected 

Kennington and South Hinksey 
 

Matter to be considered 

Amending the parish boundary south of South Hinksey to include the former 
Westwood Hotel site, currently in Kennington parish.  
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
Affects Kennington and Radley and Botley and Sunningwell district wards 
 

Proposal agreed by the Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee on 26 May 2022 for consultation 

To consult on a proposal to make no change to the current boundary between 
South Hinksey and Kennington parishes. 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation 
 
South Hinksey Parish Council has submitted a modified proposal for the 
transfer of the Westwood Hotel site from Kennington parish to South Hinksey 
parish. In addition, South Hinksey Parish Council has put forward an 
additional proposal to include the boundary of the property The Copse within 
South Hinksey parish. 
 
Kennington parish has restated its objection to the transfer of the Westwood 
Hotel site. Officers have consulted Kennington Parish Council on the 
additional proposal relating to The Copse. Any views will be reported to the 
committee. 
 
Of the four responses received all strongly supported the committee’s draft 
proposal to make no change.   
 

Recommendation 

1. To include the whole of the garden known as The Copse within South 
Hinksey parish. 

2. To make no change to the parish boundary at the Westwood Hotel site. 
 

Page 38

Agenda Item 11



 
 

Justification for final recommendation 

The proposal from South Hinksey Parish Council to transfer the garden of the 
property, known as The Copse, from Kennington parish to South Hinksey 
parish appears sensible and provides a well-defined boundary.  
 
In respect of the transfer of the Westwood Hotel site neither the previously 
submitted proposal or the revised proposal submitted during the consultation 
period, which would result in the transfer of a smaller area of land, address 
the fact that a well-defined boundary would be difficult to accommodate 
around the actual site. In addition the site does not lie directly adjacent to 
South Hinksey parish but is separated from it by open countryside.  As in 
2017, it is not considered that the proposal addresses any of the assessment 
criteria. 
 

Page 39



South Hinksey Community Governance Review: 
we'd like your feedback 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify 
anyone has been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further 
information on data protection is available in our general consultation’s privacy 
statement on our South or Vale website. 
 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

40.00% 2 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

  
 

40.00% 2 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

 0.00% 0 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

  
 

20.00% 1 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

 0.00% 0 

7 Other (please specify):  0.00% 0 

 
answered 5 

skipped 0 

Other (please specify): (0) 

No answers found. 

 
 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide its 
name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 2 

1 South Hinksey Parish Council 

2 Kennington Parish Council 
 

 
answered 2 

skipped 3 

 

Page 40

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 3 

 
answered 3 

skipped 2 

  
 
 

4. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to make no change to the boundary 
between South Hinksey Parish and Kennington Parish?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly support   
 

100.00% 4 

2 Tend to support  0.00% 0 

3 Neither support nor oppose  0.00% 0 

4 Tend to oppose  0.00% 0 

5 Strongly oppose  0.00% 0 

6 Not sure  0.00% 0 

7 I don't have a view  0.00% 0 

 

answered 4 

skipped 1 

 
 

5. If you have any alterative suggestions to make that fall within the criteria set out 
above, please provide them below:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 3 

Page 41



5. If you have any alterative suggestions to make that fall within the criteria set out 
above, please provide them below:  

1 South Hinksey should be told to concentrate on their own parish - rather than keep trying to grab land. 

2 Response below received via email. 
 
I am writing on behalf of South Hinksey Parish Council as part of the current Community Governance 
Review consultation to take further this Council’s request for a change to its boundary with the parish 
of Kennington that would bring the site of the former Westwood Hotel into this parish. 
You will recall that this is the third Community Governance Review at which this Council has made 
such a request and that this time this Council has listened to the criticism that on the two previous 
occasions the new boundary it proposed was simply a line on a map that corresponded to no 
particular feature(s) visible on the ground. 
 
This Council’s first suggestion 
At the Council meeting where this Council formulated its request this time, councillors identified a 
possible new boundary using features visible on the 1:25,000 Ordnance Survey map which resulted in 
a new boundary that would have transferred a significant slice of Bagley Wood from Kennington back 
into South Hinksey. 
However, this Council had no particular wish to take over responsibility for a large stretch of ancient 
woodland; it merely had to address the fact that the Westwood Hotel site is surrounded by Bagley 
Wood in the parish of Kennington on all four sides so this Council had to create a connection between 
the site and the existing parish of South Hinksey. 
This Council was completely unaware this proposal would stir up strong feelings in Kennington 
because, although this Council had written to Kennington Parish Council several times about 
changing the boundary, our neighbours had never had the courtesy to send an acknowledgement, let 
alone a reply. 
 
A modification 
There is, however, no need to propose taking any more than a tiny portion of the wood just across the 
road from the hotel site in order to create the sort of connection needed. 
A person has only to walk a few yards into the wood using the gate just after the end of The Copse to 
encounter a wide track used by vehicles moving timber that turns south to reach a watercourse that 
runs west to the road. 
Using these two features to define the new boundary would affect no more than a few dozen trees 
while putting the land directly opposite the former hotel site into this parish. 
I am sending as an attachment Map 1 which was recently distributed to our Hinksey Hill residents by 
St John’s College. This detailed map of Bagley Wood shows the track perfectly, identifying it as a 
permissive footpath – the purpose of the College’s letter being to ask our residents to keep to the 
paths marked on the map. 
On the map, I have shaded the tiny area that could be moved into this parish as well as the former 
hotel site on the opposite side of the road. 
I am sending separately in view of their size two photographs: Photo 1 which shows the point at which 
this track turns away from the existing boundary to head south; and Photo 2 which shows the point 
where the track meets the watercourse which this Council has suggested should be the southern limit 
of the small addition to this parish. 
These both represent features clearly visible on the ground. 
 
Absurdity of present boundary 
But this Council asks your authority to recognise that, regardless of this addition, the existing southern 
boundary of this parish with Kennington is absurd and should not be allowed to remain unchanged. 
I have attached Map 2 which shows how the boundary turns north from the property line and wanders 
across the garden of the property known as The Copse. I attach separately in view of its size a 
photograph of the garden of The Copse (Photo 3). I would challenge anyone looking at this 
photograph to spot where the parish boundary meanders across the garden. 
This Council has been told before that a boundary should match features visible on the ground and 
we submit the current boundary fails this test and that a boundary which wiggles across a property 
makes no sense: what point is there in a boundary which means a person’s garden shed might be in 
one parish or another or even straddle an invisible boundary and fall into both? 
At a previous Community Governance Review your authority corrected just such an anomaly affecting 
houses on Hinksey Hill so that the boundary with Kennington followed the property line instead of 
running through their front gardens. 
This Council asks your authority to make just such a common sense adjustment to the boundary so 
that, regardless of the Westwood Hotel site issue, the whole of the garden of The Copse will be in 
South Hinksey, as shown on Map 2. 
 
The case for the Westwood Hotel site 

Page 42



5. If you have any alterative suggestions to make that fall within the criteria set out 
above, please provide them below:  

Some of the comments made at the previous stage of public consultation suggested this Council 
wished to change the boundary to enable development within the wood. 
These remarks were as spurious as they were offensive. 
Hard as it is to imagine St John’s College putting forward a proposal to chop down a large area of 
Bagley Wood and build on it, it is even harder to imagine your authority agreeing to such obviously 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 
The suggestion that this corner of Bagley Wood is better protected by remaining in Kennington rather 
than being moved into South Hinksey is curious. 
One might as easily suggest it is the Hinksey Hill residents of this parish that tend to walk in this part 
of the wood right behind their homes and would wish it remain unspoilt 
And anyone can see from the recent history of planning applications for the Westwood Hotel site how 
much more energy this Council has put into contesting inappropriate development in the Green Belt 
there than Kennington Parish Council. 
The truth is surely that there is no appetite in either parish council to chop down part of Bagley Wood 
and build on it. 
Rather the issue relates to the very purpose of Community Governance Reviews. The question is to 
what community do the five new homes on the former hotel site properly belong: the community of 
Hinksey Hill that starts just a few yards away from their homes or the village of Kennington far away 
on the other side of the A34? 
Even some of the objectors at the previous stage recognised the logic of the change this Council has 
requested but instead argued that keeping the whole of Bagley Wood in one parish was a matter of 
principle. 
This Council, on the other hand, would suggest that the overriding purpose of a Community 
Governance Review is to ensure the cohesion of communities and that it is what is in the best 
interests of the residents of the five new houses which should guide your authority’s decision even it 
means a few dozen trees have to end up in this parish to make that possible. 

3 Response below received via email. 
 
Kennington Parish Council strongly supports the views of the Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee to keep the boundary between Kennington and South Hinksey the same. 

 

 
answered 3 

skipped 2 

 
 
 

6. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  

File Type 
Average 

Size 
Files 

Uploaded 

.jpg 7666286Kb 3 

.pdf 791487.5Kb 2 

To view the files uploaded, go into the individual results. 
answered 1 

skipped 4 

 
Please see attachments for the supporting documents uploaded. 

  
 

Page 43



7. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the South Hinksey 
Community Governance Review 2022?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 3 

1 Ask South Hinksey Parish Council to stop making this request. 

2 This proposal has been correctly rejected. 

3 I presume that the site of the Westwood hotel is to be developed as it is not in use at present. So 
probably there is some financial advantage to South Hinksey parish to move the boundary to include it 
in their area? Will it be used for housing? In which case they might benefit from additional council tax 
precepts is that right? If that’s their reasoning I suggest it remains in Kennington! The boundaries 
make sense as they are. 

 

 
answered 3 

skipped 2 

 
  

Page 44



F
^qYd
d9

Et+
; -if

+

- r1*
"$,

,: -;la

I I X - t_r-1, i I * iBf iU
---E--9- 3ec<=oot6=I s i r E : ; * ,=s* B e s q q f : le-Et -'a$',g E:ts g € e.8F € F"g*

I

i

,.. ..;ll,-ri*,

Page 45



South Hinksev bounCary change

L---\ < _\ ,
w* V ,'/ \%

:

:

E(tSqNG
EOUND4Rry

l

PRoPotED
AD0)n oNl

N

1
t-
I

rg$?T
@

liir,1i.1.\i!::.

:i:r 'ri .,

I ic",*rwm*I lw.u:rqftil{r@t6
I l..|ffi*
II
I lried6.e.dc.ffr.s,N
I lom(@ffi@

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 49



 
 

CGR_F 

 

Parishes Affected 

Sunningwell, Wootton and Cumnor 
 

Matter to be considered 

Amending the parish boundary to include the area of Boars Hill currently in 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes and amending the parish name to reflect the 
change.  
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
Affects Botley and Sunningwell, Cumnor and Wootton district wards 
Affects Kennington and North Hinksey county divisions 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation  

This is a request from Sunningwell Parish Council with support provided from 
the Boars Hill Association following a petition. Sunningwell Parish Council 
object to the draft proposal to make no change to the parish boundaries  
 
In their consultation response, Sunningwell Parish Council claim that the 
district council misrepresented their original request and attach a number of 
emails to evidence this allegation in their consultation response.  
 
The committee will note that this matter was addressed at the July meeting 
and included in the report schedule to that meeting which clarified the request 
from Sunningwell Parish Council and made clear that the parish was not 
proposing the transfer of land at Long Furlong in Sunningwell parish or 
seeking a change to the name of the parish. The misunderstanding arose 
from the content of an email from the parish clerk dated 29 November 2021 
which included the following:    
 

“We realise that such moves have a domino effect regarding number of 
electors in parishes. 
To help balance that effect perhaps the part of Sunningwell parish in 
White Cross (Longfurlong Road) could be moved into Wootton Parish. 
 This would mean White Cross would also not be split between two 
parishes. 
 
Additionally, electors in Sunningwell parish can be analysed: 
Boars Hill 38% 
Sunningwell 25% 
Bayworth 23% 
Long Furlong 14% 

Page 50

Agenda Item 12



 
 

and it would be more sensible and judicious if the parish name could 
reflect that in some way please”.  

 
As stated above, this matter was addressed prior to the committee agreeing 
its draft proposal and did not form part of the consultation. 
 
Cumnor Parish Council supports the draft proposal to make no change to the 
boundary between Cumnor and Sunningwell parishes. 
 
Wootton Parish Council supports the proposal to make no change to the 
boundary between Sunningwell and Wootton parishes and submitted a 
petition as part of their response, signed by over 234 residents, opposing any 
change to the parish boundary 
 

Recommendation: 

1. To make no change to the current boundary between Cumnor and 
Sunningwell parishes. 

2. To transfer the properties within the Boars Hill area of Wootton parish 
to Sunningwell parish 

 
 

Justification for the final recommendation 

The submission for the boundary change between Sunningwell and Wootton 
provides two main reasons for the proposal: 
 

 That the semi-rural community of Boars Hill has more in common with 
Sunningwell parish than Wootton parish  

 That Wootton Parish Council has neglected the residents of Boars Hill 
whilst Sunningwell has supported projects that have supported Boars 
Hill. 

 
In addition, there is a request from the Boars Hill Association supported by 
Sunningwell Parish Council, to transfer those Boars Hill properties located in 
Cumnor parish to Sunningwell parish in order to place all of Boars Hill within 
one parish. 
 
The petition evidence submitted by Boars Hill Association appears to show 
strong support for the proposal. This seems to suggest that there is a strong 
sense of community with those residents living within Boars Hill and that the 
identities and interests of the residents would be better served being part of 
Sunningwell parish.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 

Cumnor and Sunningwell parish boundary 
 
The proposal to transfer properties from Cumnor parish to Sunningwell parish 
was considered, and rejected, as part of a previous community governance 
review in 2016/17 which formed part of requests/proposals from Sunningwell 
Parish Council to transfer land from Cumnor, Kennington, Radley and South 
Hinksey parishes to Sunningwell parish. At that time Sunningwell Parish 
Council sought the transfer of areas of neighbouring parishes (Cumnor, South 
Hinksey and Wootton on the grounds that they formed part of the Boars Hill 
community and naturally related to the Boars Hill/Sunningwell. At that time no 
request was made to transfer the western area of Boars Hill from Wootton to 
Sunningwell).   
 
Whilst the 2022 Boars Hill Association petition illustrated support for the 
change to the parish boundary no responses to our recent consultation were 
submitted from residents living within Cumnor parish (13 properties around 
Chilswell Farm and Youlbury). There is no evidence to suggest the residents 
of this part of Cumnor Parish have a shared identity or interests with residents 
of Sunningwell parish or that such a move would provide for effective and 
convenient local government. This area has a long historical connection with 
other hamlets in Cumnor (see Cumnor Parish Council’s response dated 27 
April 2022 circulated with the agenda for the meeting of this committee held 
on 26 May 2022). 
 
Sunningwell and Wootton parish boundary 
 
As can be seen from the engagement summary report, there is an almost 
equal split in the number of respondents who support or oppose a change to 
the parish boundary between Sunningwell and Wootton parishes. However, 
as can be seen from the “postcode map of responses” a majority of those 
residents living within the Boars Hill area of Wootton oppose the draft 
recommendation to make no change and support the transfer of the area to 
Sunningwell parish. A majority of those within Wootton parish wish to see no 
change with a mixed response from those living within the areas of 
Sunningwell parish outside the “Boars Hill” area.  
 
Both the results of this engagement survey and the signatories to the original 
petition indicate that there is strong support for the transfer of that area of 
Boars Hill within Wootton parish to Sunningwell parish and that this could 
improve community cohesion.   
 
Evidence has been provided of a strong community identity within Boars Hill, 
and survey responses have shown that there is disquiet regarding effective 
representation of Boars Hill residents within Wootton parish. Many 
respondents have also stated that the nature of the area is better aligned with 
the rural nature of Sunningwell parish. However, as addressed in the report 
schedule to the July meeting of this committee, it is not clear whether the 
change would provide greater access to effective and convenient services. 
Residents of Boars Hill use the facilities within Wootton (examples in the 

Page 52



 
 

survey feedback include the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre, 
the cricket club which is named The Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club and 
the Wootton allotments) and presumably the primary school and shops.  
 
The current arrangements for parishes in this area of the district have existed 
for many years. It is normal for rural areas parishes to be made up of different 
communities and hamlets, many of which may become obscure over the 
years as developments have taken place, but which continue to support 
community identity. This is true across the parishes of Sunningwell and 
Wootton with neighbours living in different parishes.  
 
As with the review in 2016 this review has had a detrimental impact on parish 
council relations. As in 2016 the request for the review has come from 
Sunningwell Parish Council although this request has concentrated on the 
area of Boars Hill that currently lies in Wootton parish. It is clear from the 2022 
petition and engagement survey that there is strong support from the Boars 
Hill properties for the requested boundary change.  
 

Page 53



Sunningwell, Wootton and Cumnor Community 
Governance Review: we'd like your feedback 

 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

89.67% 217 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

  
 

1.65% 4 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

  
 

1.65% 4 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

  
 

2.48% 6 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

  
 

0.41% 1 

7 Other (please specify):   
 

4.13% 10 

 
answered 242 

skipped 1 

Other (please specify): (10) 

1 Boars Hill resident 

2 i.e. a resident of Boars Hill 

3 I am a Boars Hill resident 

4 Boars hill resident  

5 Boars hill resident  

6 A RESIDENT OF BOARS HILL SUNNINGWELL PARISH 

7 There appears to be no option to oppose both proposals which I do 

8 Previous owner and renter of Boars Hill properties 

9 Priest-in-Charge St Peters Church, Wootton 

10 Live in neighbouring parish and spend much time in Wootton.  
 

 
 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 16 

Page 54



2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

1 Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre  

2 Cumnor Parish Council 

3 The Greater World 

4 Sunningwell Parish Counci 

5 N/A 

6 HOME 

7 Oxford Pro Musica Singers 

8 Pharmacy 

9 University of Oxford 

10 personal 

11 Wootton Parish Council 

12 As Priest-in-Charge of St Peters Church 

13 Wootton parish council 

14 Sunningwell Parish Council 

15 Wootton Allotments  

16 Wootton Parish Council 
 

 
answered 16 

skipped 227 

 

3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 228 

 
answered 228 

skipped 15 

 
  
 

4. Which proposal would you like to comment on: Tick all that apply.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 

Make no change to the 
boundary between 
Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor 
parishes 

  
 

93.83% 228 

Page 55



4. Which proposal would you like to comment on: Tick all that apply.  

2 
Amend the name of 
Wootton parish to include 
the name Boars Hill 

  
 

68.31% 166 

 
answered 243 

skipped 0 

 
 
 
 
Sunningwell, Wootton and Cumnor boundary change 
 

5. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to make no change to the boundary 
between Sunningwell Parish and Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly support   
 

48.00% 108 

2 Tend to support   
 

1.78% 4 

3 Neither support or oppose   
 

0.44% 1 

4 Tend to oppose  0.00% 0 

5 Strongly oppose   
 

49.78% 112 

6 Not sure  0.00% 0 

7 I don't have a view  0.00% 0 

 

answered 225 

skipped 18 

 
 
  

Page 56



Postcode map of responses 

 
The map was created using a 'point displacement' method to symbolize the postcode respondents, 
which means that where multiple responses occur for a single postcode, they have been placed in a 
circle around the central postcode point so as to ensure all points are visible.  

 

   

Page 57



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 110 

1 Leave things as they are. No change needed. 

2 I was surprised to find that my Parish Council had proposed to eject Long Furlong Road where I 
live from the parish, while conducting a land grab on the, presumably more affluent, Boars Hill. I 
was even more surprised to first learn of this by reading a supporting document to this consultation 
and not from the Parish Council itself. It makes something of a mockery of representative 
democracy if the body elected doesn’t see the necessity of consulting residents affected by a 
proposal on their opinions. I am glad that no changes to the boundary affecting Long Furlong Rd 
are proposed in the final plan but I will be making my displeasure to my Parish Councillors. 

3 Decisions by the Parish Councils have been made on the basis of the Parishes that currently 
stand, including the made Neighbourhood Plan of Wootton and St Helen's Without and the 
Community Centre refurbishment. Changes to the boundary would result in additional cost not only 
to the tax payers of Wootton but to all residents of the parishes. Furthermore, the delineation would 
separate Wootton Village and Boars Hill, which share the same "Boars Hill" postal address and 
postcode fragmenting a currently united village. The change as proposed by Sunningwell only 
takes into account a small area of Boars Hill notably along the Ridgeway and not those houses 
which are on the slopes above Wootton Village. Additionally, it separates long standing 
partnerships of the Cricket Club and the Church which currently unite the villages. The link 
between Boars Hill and Sunningwell is at best tenuous. 

4 I strongly support the no change proposal. The parish council serves the communities of Wootton 
and Boars Hill well and is best placed to continue to do so. 
 
Geographically, the communities of Wootton and Boars Hill are closely linked and should remain 
so. 

5 As chair of the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre I am strongly against the change of 
the parish boundary. It will have a detrimental effect on the community centre's management plan 
as Wootton PC will have far less money available for grants. 

6 There is no discernable reason to change the parish boundaries as they currently make sensible 
lines between parishes. Cumnor's neighbourhood plan provides and accounts for the properties 
affected and ensures a proper overview from the local parish. Historically Chilswell has been one 
of the small hamlets, along with nearby Henwood, that fall within the parish. The original Parish 
boundary was established to reflect the land ownership of four tithings - with Chiswell being part of 
one of those. An extract from the Cumnor Neighbourhood Plan shows the importance of the area 
to the Parish. There are 3 contiguous and overlapping designated Important Views within the 
Parish that span - and originate at Chilswell. A fourth important view (number 4 Beacon Hill) has 
the section of the Parish under discussion in its foreground. The Chiswell part of the Parish under 
discussion is part of a wider specific area of local character – Local Character Assessment 14 
(LCA 14) – along with the Hurst SSSI and Beacon Hill. As such it shares geology, landscape, 
ancient woodlands, form and function with a wider area of the Parish. LCA 14 is crossed by the 
Oxford Greenbelt Way and by public footpaths known locally as the ‘Chilswell Paths’. 
 
The properties of Boars Hill in Wootton use the Wootton amenity directly and as such should 
remain in Wootton. 
 
This feels like it would be a total waste of public funds during an economic crisis to consider 
changing a parish boundary for no real positive outcome. 

7 The residents of Boars Hill already enjoy the benefits of existing facilities, and will no doubt wish to 
continue to use them, I see no benefit to these proposed changes only a continued cost which the 
residents of Boars Hill by submitting this proposed change, wish to avoid! 

8 This is not a practical way to start putting additional work load onto these parishes. The existing 
boundary have worked for a number of years, if Boars Hill residences Require this change then I 
would suggest they contact the Said parishes directly and not leave it to others to guess at their 
requirements. 

Page 58



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

9 I believe that the current boundary has served well for the last forty plus years and see no need to 
change. The financial implications for the parish could be very costly. Geographically speaking, I 
can see Boars Hill from my house and can walk there in under twenty minutes, surely it should 
remain. 

10 Boars Hill residents will still use the amenities in Wootton and so should have to pay towards them. 

11 I do not believe it is in the interest of the people living in the parish to make any changes to the 
boundary. 

12 I strongly support the proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish 
and Wootton as I was concerned that our Parish Council couldn't manage any more responsibility 
than they currently have but also would have a negative impact on the diverse communities of 
Sunningwell, Bayworth and parts of Boars Hill. 

13 It would be to the detriment of the residents of Wootton if the parishes were split and the 
boundaries changed in terms of funding etc. the boundaries and parishes should remain 
unchanged  

14 The residents of Boars Hill and the Boars Hill Association have not attended or are represented on 
the Parish Council (there are two vacanbcies.) I believe they state that their views are not correctly 
considered by the Parish Council yet have taken no action to make these known to Parish 
Councillors. Two residents on Boars Hill are Sunningwell Parsh Councillors - why are they not 
fulfilling that role on the Wootton and Dry Sandford Parish Council? Surely the answer is to take 
part or attend PC meetings. The Boars Hill residents can and do make full use of the W&DS village 
hall yet now want to opt out of the continued funding of that facility but no doubt still wish to use the 
village hall. 

15 Cumnor Parish Council has submitted a response to the consultation and is pleased to note that 
officers are recommending no changes to the boundary.  

16 Boars Hill has always been part of Wootton and I believe it would be divisive to move the 
boundary. 

17 The boundaries work well as they are and I don’t see benefits to the broader community to 
changing it. Those residents would still be making use of facilities and services supported by the 
parish council so moving the boundary seems impractical and unfair. 

18 It would seem that the wealthy residents of boars hill want to have their cake and eat it. They want 
to spend the money given just on themselves without having to contribute to the services that they 
all use as these, under the current proposal would remain the responsibility of Wootton parish to 
pay for. If this was allowed to happen it would be a travesty of the richest residents taking as much 
as they can for themselves and the poorer residents having to pay for all the services that richest 
will still want to use, such as the shops, the Schools, the sports grounds, the playgrounds, the 
allotments, the community centre and the churches. This can not be allowed to happen.  

19 This questionnaire appears to be worded in a confusing manner.. is this deliberate or 
incompetence? 

20 This does seem like a sledgehammer to crack a nut approach and a waste of councillors' time.An 
apparent petty squabble that has escalated into a referendumm on a boundary change which 
would be clearly unfair for Wootton residents and create innumerable predictable and unforeseen 
administrative problems for no obvious benefit. 
We need to work together not become more tribal! 

21 This is a very cynical move by Sunningwell Parish Council to attempt to annex only the high value 
properties within a neighbouring parish to boost council tax revenue but provide no additional 
services. Almost the entirety of the area proposed to be annexed contains private roads and 
drives, meaning the additional maintenance burden on the parish council would be negligible, 
whereas the additional council tax revenue would be substantial. The Sunningwell parish council 
already has significant question marks over its constitutional conduct and transparency of grant 
allocations from parish funds. There are many disgruntled residents within Sunningwell parish, so 
perhaps the council there will be better served by representing the constituents they already have 
and getting their house in order, instead of trying to grow the parish 
 
Many residents of Boars Hill make regular use of the facilities in Wootton parish, including the 
Community Centre, Church, School, recreation areas and nature reserves. There are many rights 

Page 59



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

of way linking Wootton to Boars Hill, such that passing between these two areas feels natural and 
unperturbed. Conversely, the only way to reach Sunningwell parish involves crossing the busy Fox 
Lane road, and the natural landscape clearly divides the two parishes currently. The proposed new 
boundary bears no relation to the landscape and may as well have been drawn on a property 
website with the search criteria set to '£1 million +'. 

22 Make no changes or we will have to move house from here 

23 It was very difficult to understand the full picture behind the proposed changes. I mean concrete 
reasons. I contacted BHA for clarification on Boars Hill concrete issues they were concerned 
about, but got no sensible answer which is why I’m voting for no change to proposal. 

24 bOARS hILL RESIDENTS ARE MAKING FULL USE OF THE FACILITIES WITHIN wOOTTON 
vILLAGE. 
 
Boars Hill residents are making full use of the facilities within Wootton Village. 
 
Many of these facilities are not replicated in Sunningwell.....hence Boars Hill residents will continue 
to avail themselves of the amenities/facilities within Wootton but take no responsibility for any of 
the costs of running such facilities. It seems patently unfair. 
 
 

25 It has been a long-term desire held by many Boars Hill residents that we should be united under 
one parish. It is absurd to be part of Wootton parish as several parts of Boars Hill are actually in 
both Wootton and Sunningwell parishes - in Lincombe Lane, for example, although all of the lane is 
much closer to Sunningwell.  
Sunningwell Parish Council actively encourages the participation of their Boars Hill residents who 
play a full role in Sunningwell matters. 
All of Boars Hill has more in common with and a stronger identity with Sunningwell than with 
Wootton as Boars Hill and Sunningwell have a history of being primarily “agricultural and 
residential” in contrast to simply “residential” as official post code descriptions of Wootton state. 
A clear majority (two thirds) of those Boars Hill residents who would be affected want to be in 
Sunningwell parish. This is a clear democratic majority and their wishes should be respected. 
Changing the name from “Wootton” to “Wootton and Boars Hill” would be a nonsense as half of 
Boars Hill is already in Sunningwell Parish, as also noted above. So this must not be allowed to 
happen. Boars Hill makes up only a very small percentage of Wootton. Wootton parish has three 
times the population of Sunningwell and, even after the requested changes, would remain 
substantially larger even excluding their expected new housing developments.  

26 N/A  

27 no 

28 This is a badly worded proposal. I strongly oppose the proposal.  

29 I live in Boars Hill and it has much more to do with Sunningwell than Wootton. The council of 
Wootton does nothing to support Boars Hill. 
Sunningwell has agricultural roots as does Boars Hill unlike Wootton which is residential only. 

30 I strongly oppose the above proposal because Boars Hill derives no benefit from being in the 
Wootton and Cumnor parish. Historically any requests from Boars Hill residents have been totally 
ignored by the Wootton and Cumnor parish council and Boars Hill is purely viewed as an important 
“cash cow” for this council. 

31 As a resident on Boars Hill for over 80 years I know the vast majority feel drawn to the parish of 
Sunningwell. We do not want to in Wooton Boars Hill and are already part of the Sunningwell 
community with the chruch and parish council which does such good work for our area. It would be 
much better to unite the community on Boars Hill with Sunningwell and support the local church 
and council. 

32 I fully support the comments made by Wootton PC in opposing this change of boundary.  

33 1 The natural community boundary of Boars Hill is easily definable and should clearly all be within 
the Parish of Sunningwell 
2. The views of those of the residents of Boars Hill, whose houses are currently within Wootton 

Page 60



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

Parish, have been extensively canvassed, with the rest that there was/is a two thirds majority in 
favour of changing the boundaries to incorporate the Wotton part within Sunningwell. 
3. It is not acceptable for Wootton residents outside Boars Hill or the administrators working for the 
Vale to ignore and proceed against the wishes of this clear majority. 

34 As a resident currently under Wootton PC I have been very concerned and disappointed about 
antagonistic perceptions of parish councillors to matters important to Bars Hill residents. I prefer to 
be resident under Sunningwell PC on the basis that the PC is more aligned to a countryside 
persona, similar to Boars Hill. Sunningwell Parish is much small than Wootton parish and 
welcomes and takes notice of Boars Hill resident concerns. 

35 These proposals ignore the majority support for the original petition. 

36 It has been a long-term desire held by many Boars Hill residents that we should be united under 
one parish. 
 
Boars Hill concerns have long been ignored by Wootton Parish Council and over the last decade or 
more at least three Boars Hill residents who have joined the Wootton Parish Council as members 
have resigned within months (and in one case weeks) because of how they were treated by other 
council members. In contrast, Sunningwell Parish Council actively encourages the participation of 
their Boars Hill residents who play a full role Sunningwell matters. 
 
All of Boars Hill has more in common and a stronger identity with Sunningwell than with Wootton 
as Boars Hill and Sunningwell have a history of being primarily “agricultural and residential” rather 
than simply “residential” as official post code descriptions of Wootton state. 
 
A large majority (two thirds) of those Boars Hill residents who would be affected want to be in 
Sunningwell parish. This is a clear democratic majority and their wishes should be respected. 

37 As a resident of Boars Hill I would like the area to be unified under the parish of Sunningwell. 
Your survey does not offer this. 

38 One of the main complaints Boars Hill residents have about being part of Wootton Parish is that 
our opinions on many matters were completely ignored and now you have done it again by not 
including in the choices available exactly what we are asking for, to become part of Sunningwell 
Parish. 

39 I signed a petition as to this which appears to have been completely ignored. See below. 

40 I do not support either of the two proposals. We, as residents in Boars hill, have express our strong 
support for a change of the boundaries to include the WHOLE OF BOARS HILL in the parish of 
Sunningwall. You are procrastinating and refusing to accept our democratic right to change. Your 
proposal to change the name of the parish is not only ridiculous but naive in the extreme. 

41 Boats hill is currently split between two parishes which is not ideal. Boars hill fits better in 
Sunningwell, and the majority of affected boars hill residents have already indicated that they 
would like to join Sunningwell.  

42 A large majority (two thirds) of those Boars Hill residents who would be 
affected want to be in Sunningwell parish. This is a clear democratic 
majority and their wishes should be respected. 

43 The clear desire of Boars Hill residents is to combine their area with Sunningwell, with whom we 
have far more issues in common than with Cumnor of Wootton. We have carried out extensive 
consultation and a vote to this effect. We are puzzled, if not vexed, as to why this option is not 
included in the current proposals. The process now suggested appears wasteful and anti-
democratic by ignoring clearly stated wishes of residents. 

44 Strongly oppose this proposal as want to be part of sunningwell. 

45 Very confused by this as boars hill residents have already voted to become part of sunningwell 
parish council. Wootton parish does not seem to take any of the boars hill residents views into 
account. Boars hill already has a strong relationship with Sunningwell.  

46 As a Boars Hill resident of many years I have seen a great change in the demographic of Wootton 
which has moved it further away from the demographic of Boars Hill. In short they share no 
common factors. Sunningwell in both structure and atmosphere is in tune with and complementary 
to that of Boars Hill . Wootton shares none of these factors. It would be a travesty and inaccurate 

Page 61



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

to refer to the area as Wootton and Boars Hill since a large part of Boars Hill is already in the 
Sunningwell parish . Most Importantly the survey conducted on Boars Hill gave a clear majority for 
linking it with Sunningwell and not Wootton and this democratic vote seems to have been ignored.  

47 Boars Hill has more in common in character with Sunningwell rather than Wootton. As a resident of 
Boars Hill I would strongly support changing the boundaries to incorporate the whole of Boars Hill 
into Sunningwell parish. 

*48* Refer to the petition of residents given to you which has already exposed this view  

49 The Vale of White Horse DC should become part of a unitary authority within a new Oxfordshire 
Council. 

50 The survey of those in Boar’s Hill was in favour of moving the boundary so that is the democratic 
result  

51 We have already voted to change so you have no right to try to overturn the decision 

52 Appears to be trying to thwart the clearly expressed wishes of the residents living in western Boars 
Hill, where as two thirds of the total asked to join Sunningwell Parish. It is important to note that the 
parish boundary legislation actually says that "The views of local communities and inhabitants are 
of central importance." 

53 I am astonished that The Vale of the White Horse can completely disregard the wishes of the 
majority of people on Boars Hill who would like to be united as one parish, that is, Sunningwell. 
This is not even mentioned as an alternative. The Vale should be mindful of the wishes of its 
residents. To be frank, the fact that this wish is not even included, is suspicious to say the least. It 
hints at worst of collusion and self interest amongst some powerful parishes, at best, a don’t give a 
damn attitude towards most people who live on Boars Hill.  

54 The views from the Boars Hill Association are very relevent. I would suggest you listen to what they 
say 

55 Boars Hill should be in the parish of Sunningwell, not Wootto, as requested by the majority of 
Boars Hill Residents. 

56 It seems to me that the majority view after the initial consultation is not served by either of 
proposed alternatives! 

57 No 

58 Boars Hill residents request that the whole of Boars Hill should be in Sunningwell Parish. We want 
to be united and have a voice in local matters.  

59 I am am a resident in Lincombe Lane and have lived on Boars Hill for 44 years. At present the 
boundary runs down Lincombe Lane so that the majority of the Lane are in Sunningwell Parish and 
the remaining 10 houses, one of which is mine, are in Wootton Parish. 
This is a complete anomaly. I feel much more affinity with Sunningwell, geographically closer and 
my husband is buried in Sunningwell churlchyard. I really would welcome this opportunity to join 
the Sunningwell Parish, where I feel Boars Hill properly belongs. 

60 Boars hill should be in one parish, and it fits better with Sunningwell. Wootton has no interest in us.  

61 Why is anyone voting on this who does not live on boars hill.  
 
This should be a democratic vote only for boars hill residents.  

62 Given Cumnor Parish has a strong and robust Neighbourhood Plan in place with significant 
community support,the boundary for Cumnor should stay the same with no changes. 

63 Boars Hill exists and has existed for many years as a community and its current artificial division 
into two parts given to Sunningwell and to Wootton parishes makes no sense. The community has 
an active Residents' Association and a strong identity and both would be served by joining the two 
parts into the same parish. I believe that this parish should be Sunningwell.  
 
Moreover, I understand that during a recent consultation process with the residents of Boars Hill, a 
considerable majority voted to unite our community under one parish, namely Sunningwell. A very 
small number of residents voted to keep the status quo.  

Page 62



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

 
We now have a golden opportunity to unite the area of Boars Hill under one parish and to do 
nothing makes no sense. 

64 Only a small part of the area which it was proposed should be moved have any connection with 
Sunningwell. Insofar as Boars Hill residents on this side of Boars Hill have any contact with other 
immediately local areas it is with the shops, dentist and the Community Centre in Wootton and the 
Church and primary school in Old Wootton Village. The only time most Boars Hill residents go to 
Sunningwell is to visit The Flowing Well for a drink or meal or in the past the Boars Hill Garden 
Club used the Sunningwell School of Art for its meetings but currently they meet on line. Those 
Boars Hill post code residents who are currently included in Cumnor Parish Council have even less 
contact with Sunningwell. 

65 I am a resident of Boars Hill. I am aware that there was a recent Parish Boundary petition, which 
residents living in the Wootton and Cumnor parts of Boars Hill were invited to sign six months ago. 
It requested that the parish boundaries on Boars Hill be amended to include all of Boars Hill into a 
single parish, specifically into ***Sunningwell Parish***. Two thirds of residents living in the 
Wootton and Cumnor parts of Boars Hill signed the petition requesting the change. This is the 
change I would support, not least since Boars Hill is closer to and has a more obvious kinship with 
the rural parish of Sunningwell. I am also concerned that the voice of Boars Hill residents would be 
lost if we were to be combined into a parish with Wootton. 
 
I understand that there has not been a positive relationship between Boars Hill members of the 
Wootton parish council; this contrasts with the excellent relationship between Boars Hill residents 
and Sunningwell parish council. 
 
Changing the Wootton parish name from “Wootton” to “Wootton and Boars Hill” is a nonsense as 
half of Boars Hill is already in Sunningwell. 

66 I am a Boars Hill resident and currently reside in Sunningwell Parish. I do not wish to be moved 
into Woottoon or Cumnor parishes. Sunningwell parish has a strong connection with Boars Hill 
residents and is supportive of us. It is nearest to us; it has much more in common with Boars Hill 
as it is essentially a rural/agricultural community. The same cannot be said of Wootton or Cumnor; 
in addition, the larger numbers of people in these areas would reduce the voice of Boars Hill 
residents in matters which affect specifically us and Sunningwell parish. I am opposed to this 
illogical and undesirable redrawing of Parish boundaries. 
 
I would also point out that there has been a previous petition in which the majority of Boars Hill 
residents expressed a desire to be united in a singe parish - with SUNNINGWELL, and not with 
Wootton.  

67 Many residents of Boars Hill proper (ie those who actually live on the Hill and not those who just 
have Boars Hill in their postal address), have long had the desire to be part of a single parish. As a 
community with a strong community spirit fostered by the Boars Hill Association we feel we have 
more in common and a closer identity with Sunningwell, rather than Wootton, which like Boars Hill, 
is a semirural community.  
In addition, we have been appalled at the way Wootton PC has responded to our concerns over 
the last couple of decades, particularly recently with reference to the planning application for 
Foxcombe Hall, and there is a feeling of resentment and lack of trust towards WPC. Whilst WPC 
claims to welcome residents of Boars Hill on to the council, there has been a history of rudeness 
and disrespect towards Boars Hill council members resulting in their resignations within months. 
Quite frankly, we are fed up with it. Although there may be a new chairman of WPC, these issues 
have been going on for decades and many of the most disrespectful are still on the council. 
Unfortunately over time, the culture of WPC has been one of negativity towards Boars Hill 
residents. 
Geographically it makes more sense for all Boars Hill residences (actually on the Hill) to be in one 
parish and not split over three ie Sunningwell, Wootton and Cumnor. 

68 There is a moral duty to keep them as they are. I believe that, in the proposed plan as well as on 
the maps, there has been a deliberate attempt to confusticate and distract. Ideologies such as 
environment, ethic miniaturise and housing have been used as a red herring to disguise the fact 
that the Boars hill community are keen to only financially contribute to themselves and the similarly 
affluent village of Sunningwell, etc….  
Further, the maps are not as clear as they might be. They are framed differently so they cannot be 
compared and in such a way as to ‘hide’ the joining together with Sunningwell.  
I would expect more than what I consider an underhanded offering of information.  

Page 63



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

69 66% of the population who will be affected ie all those living on Boars Hill itself in the Wootton and 
Cumnor parishes want to be part of Sunningwell Parish. That is a very clear majority. Also we 
absolutely do not want Wootton parish to be called Wootton and Boars Hill parish. Half of Boars 
Hill houses are in Sunningwell so this change would be disastrous and confusing and add 
complications. It is clear that the council does not understand the issues and should inform 
themselves of the real facts before making any such untenable decisions.  

70 I strongly support the proposal to make no change to the boundary. Firstly Boars Hill extends into 
the majority of Wootton Parish and to suggest that the boundary change will encompass 'all of 
Boars Hill' is completely wrong. Water leaving the Hill doesn't stop at the boundary! There are 
houses on the same contour as Old Boars Hill and to suggest they are not on the Hill is nonsense. 
My address is Wootton Village, Boars Hill and this extends throughout of Wootton Parish! It can be 
argued that Boars Hill extends to Dry Sandford. The proposal to change the boundary appears to 
be driven entirely by the affluent members of the Boars Hill Residents Association (BHRA) who 
also dominate Sunningwell Parish Council. The BHRA does not represent all of the residents of 
Boars Hill and I can confirm I was not consulted on this proposed change. The BHRA are 
fundamentally a social club for affluent members with big houses. I am concerned that the proposal 
to change the boundary has been driven by BHRA whose members, who are predominately white, 
rich and elderly object to new residents at the old Open University site and social & affordable 
housing in Wootton. I am concerned that the proposed boundary change has underlying social 
segregation reasons driven by class and affluence that can't be written down. The proposed 
boundary change would remove land owed by the Oxford Preservation Trust from Wootton Parish. 
This includes Elizabeth Daryush garden & house that was donated to the Trust. Elizabeth Daryush 
is a famous poet and is buried in Wootton St Peters Church in Wootton Parish.  

71 Badly worded statement.  
 
I propose that boars hill should form part of Sunningwell parish NOT Wootton.  

72 Boars Hill residents use Wootton facilities, not Sunningwell's. Therefore it is only fair that Wootton 
should receive the correct remuneration.  

73 I am a resident of Boars Hill and strongly oppose the the proposal to make no change to the 
boundary. We have the opportunity to have the whole of Boars Hill in one parish instead of being 
split which would make us a more cohesive community. 

74 Many parts of Boars Hill are close to Sunningwell and feel part of Sunningwell but are stuck in 
Wootton parish which is openly hostile to Boars Hill residents. 

75 It would make entire sense to have the whole of Boars Hill within one parish. That parish should 
clearly be Sunningwell, which will still leave Wootton as a larger parish. The balancing of numbers 
is logical.  
It has never made sense for an obviously homogeneous area to be divided into two/three 
Parishes.  

76 For some odd reason, your questions have very conveniently sidestepped the boundary change 
proposal signed by me some six months or more ago proposing Sunningwell and "Boars Hill" 
boundary changes 

77 Please make no changes to the boundaries  

78 No. 

79 I believe strongly that all of Boars Hill should be incorporated into Sunningwell Parish and that the 
current bifurcation of Boars Hill is undesirable and does not reflect neither the wishes of residents 
of Boars Hill or treat the area as the natural single entity it is  

80 I am a resident of Boars Hill. It was demonstrated by the results of the parish boundary petition 
which residents living in the Wootton and Cumnor parts of Boars Hill were invited to sign six 
months ago that a large majority (two thirds) of those Boars Hill residents who would be affected 
want to be in Sunningwell parish. This is a clear democratic majority and their wishes should be 
respected. 

81 The majority of the relevant Boars Hill residents wish to be part of Sunningwell Parish. please do 
not ignore democracy. Neither proposal has merit or is the wish of the Boars Hill residents 
including my family. 

Page 64



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

82 Boars hill is split between two parishes, makes more sense to be united in one parish and 
Sunningwell is more aligned with Boars Hill residents requirements.  

83 I believe that all of Boars Hill should be part of Sunningwell Parish, as does the vast majority of 
Boars Hill residents. Boars Hill has a natural fit with Sunningwell given its rural nature. There 
should be no split between different parishes for Boars Hill. 

84 If it isn’t broke, don’t fix it.  

85 Why would we wish to change the parish boundaries???? 

86 I have lived on Boars Hill for 44 years and am resident in Lincombe Lane. At present the boundary 
runs down Lincombe Lane, cutting off 12 properties (including mine) from the rest of our 
neighbours in the Lane - this is a complete anomaly. I feel strong affinity with Sunningwell, my 
husband is buried in Sunningwell churchyard, and I would very much like to join the rest of my 
friends and neighbours in Sunningwell Parish. (See Natural Communities, point 77 above.) 

87 Boars Hill and Sunningwell PCs should be united on the grounds of common interest leading to 
effective democracy. 

88 Boars Hill has always had a link with Sunningwell They share the same topography. They have a 
similar lay out of a mainly ribbon development and both give the onlooker and occupants a feel of 
being in a village. Wootton evokes none of these feelings. It’s large in comparison, has a parade of 
shops and an extensive new population in new estates.  

89 It is not clear that there is any advantage in making any changes. In the absence of that it makes 
sense to leave the boundary as it is for now. 

90 Boars Hill residence like to be above the rest 

91 Two thirds of residents living in the Wootton part of Boars Hill signed the petition requesting the 
change of parish boundary, specifically to include all of Boars Hill into Sunningwell Parish. 
STRONGLY OPPOSE your proposal to make No change to the boundary. 

92 To speak in a positive sense, I strongly support the proposal to change the boundary of the 
parishes. The people of Boars Hill want it, as evidenced by the recent petition. The people of Boars 
Hill are one community with a distinct character and sphere of interest; as is also the separate case 
in Wootton and Dry Sandford. It is far more appropriate that all of Boars Hill is included in 
Sunningwell Parish because both are rural villages, whereas Wootton is essentially urban at its 
heart. 
 
Further evidence of the association with Sunningwell is the fact that Sunningwell fully supported 
the important local matter of the PHBS expansion and change of use in the Greenbelt, to the 
extent of a £5K contribution to consultant's fees. Conversely, Wootton was initially not helpful in 
representing residents opinions and only at the last opportunity became slightly more helpful. 
Wootton charges the Ukraine group for using their Hall; Sunningwell offered free use. I do not 
complain about this; simply present the facts as evidence of different interests of Wootton 
compared to Boars Hill's community. Residents of Boars Hill would rather be part of the supportive 
Sunningwell Parish, as residents and representing their views. 
 
(BTW: The 'Request for Feedback' is badly framed as a double negative. This will be confusing for 
some. The question should have read "Do you support a change of boundary as proposed". Less 
words and no confusion.) 

93 I think Boars Hill should be part of Sunningwell; both are rural villages. 

94 Many people on Boars Hill are affiliated with Sunningwell, going to the Church in Sunningwell and 
attending social events in Sunningwell. We don't have that connection with Wootton. We can walk 
to Sunningwell safely. We cannot walk to Wootton safely due to lack if road paths. We have friends 
in Sunningwell. We know no-one in Wootton. 

95 Boars Hill residents overwhelmingly wish to be part of Sunningwell parish, and have no connection 
with wootton parish. 

96 I attend St Peters Church and have a Boars Hill postcode. The church has historically (for 
centuries) been the church serving a good part of Boars Hill and the ecclesiastical parish 
boundaries reflect this. It would be wrong to separate Boars Hill from the historic links with Wootton 
Village. 

Page 65



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

97 I strongly support the proposal not to make the change to the boundary. Both the WPC and the 
surrounding parishes (with the exception of Sunningwell obviously) are unanimous in the support 
for NOT making any changes. Aside from the huge administrative work to change everything WPC 
does - remember we are all volunteers - there are financial, social, and historical reasons to keep 
the boundaries as is.  
 
In addition it is crucial to note that the joint Neighbourhood Plan that links our two Parishes, 
another reason for leaving the Parish Boundary as it is. After all the hard work (and canvassing the 
views of the residents of both Parishes) that went into producing that plan I do not think any 
boundary changes would be beneficial or should be allowed. 
 
Finally it’s important to note that fairness plays an important role in not making any boundary 
change. The residents of Boars Hill have always made full use of the Wootton and Dry Sandford 
Community Centre and belong to many of the societies that enjoy its facilities. 
 
As Sunningwell Parish has no equivalent Community Centre, the Boars Hill residents will continue 
to do use WADSCC, just as they will continue to use the other amenities in the village, such as the 
cricket club and field (already called The Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club), primary school, St 
Peter’s church and the community park. All these community facilities are supported financially by 
Wootton Parish Council either directly or indirectly (through a grant to the Wootton Primary School 
PTA to provide laptops for home learning during lockdown, for instance).  
 
It seems very unjust that the residents of a new, smaller Wootton Parish should pay a higher 
proportion per head towards repaying the Community Centre loan and maintaining other existing 
amenities in the village, while residents of Boars Hill, who use these facilities, contribute nothing at 
all. It is all the more unfair that as the overall precept will be smaller, the amount available to spend 
on these local amenities will be reduced. 

98 We have had little support from Wootton. When entering Wootton from whichever direction, it has 
white gates, a village name, a reminder to drive carefully and a bold 30mph sign. Similarly, so do 
Dry Sandford, Cotthill, Whitecross and even little Gozzards Ford. However, the busiest road of all 
i.e. Fox Lane, has just a 30mph sign nestled in the hedgerow and just a few metres from the first 
resident driveway. Why have we not been provided with similar road furniture? (gates, village 
name etc?!! ). Half of Boars Hill is already within Sunningwell parish and it makes perfect sense to 
also incorporate the small area currently under discussion into Sunningwell.  

99 I have lived on Boars Hill for nearly 20 years and there is no doubt that the community has a strong 
feeling of unity. Our newsletter said that over two thirds of the residents who live in the Wootton 
and Cumnor parts of the Hill had signed a petition asking to be transferred to Sunningwell parish. 
Your council seems to operate in a strange way as I am now rather surprised to find that you are 
asking us to vote on a proposition which is opposite to that which was requested. So I now have to 
vote against what you are suggesting to get what the residents on Boars Hill actually asked for: 
which is for us all to be together in one Sunningwell parish. 

100 I have been a playing member and member of the committee of Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket for 
nearly 30 years. As the name implies, the Village and Boars Hill have made up the cricket club 
since the turn of the 20th century and certainly since its reforming around 1989. Wootton Parish 
Council grants a significant amount of money every year to support Wootton and |Boars Hill Cricket 
Club. If the Parish is split we believe that it won't be able to support the cricket club to the same 
extent. Loss of revenue in terms of support in paying fuel bills, water rates and management of the 
pavilion and any increase in the rent of the pavilion would seriously impact on the cricket club's 
ability to function and would put its continuation in doubt. It is not only the cricket club that benefits 
from generous support from the Parish Council. It gives thousands of pounds to the WADS 
Community Centre (I am an executive member of the community centre executive committee). If 
the Parish is split I believe the Parish won't be able to support the Centre to the same amount. The 
centre provides a crucial focus for a whole range of local clubs, a centre for residents to hire for 
social events, a venue for celebrations (e.g. WADS STOCK and the jubilee picnic) and a meeting 
place for local organisations. The Boars Hill Community freely use the centre, but if they break 
away, they will not be contributing via their council tax whilst continuing to benefit from its use. 

101 I am responsible as minister of St Peters for parishioners. This includes a good section of Boars 
Hill. The church has strong links with Boars Hill residents - a number attend, weddings and 
funerals are taking place at the church for BH residents. This has been true for centuries. It would 
be good if the council parish boundaries are in line with the ecclesiastical parish boundaries (which 
will not be changing). 

Page 66



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

102 Until the late nineteenth century the hamlets of Wootton and Old Boars Hill were outlying parts of 
Cumnor parish. Since then they have formed a separate parish with the same boundaries as today 
and over the years have developed into a single large village of some 3,000 inhabitants, centred 
around the Besselsleigh Rd shops, the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre and the 
Bystander Public House. Although different parts of the village, such as Old Wootton, Boars Hill, 
and the B4017 corridor, have their distinctive social and architectural characters, the village is a 
well- integrated community as is evidenced in the replies to the questionnaire sent out in preparing 
our Joint Neighbourhood Plan with St Helen Without (made December 2019). There was a strong 
feeling of belonging to a neighbourhood and a strong satisfaction with the area as a place to live.  

103 I am really concerned to find that the VoWH District Council appears to be trying to thwart the 
clearly expressed wishes of the Boars Hill community despite the legislation actually saying that 
"The views of local communities and inhabitants are of central importance." 
The omission of the very request of the residents, to unite Boars Hill within a single parish, is what 
prompted this consultation in the first place and to have their request excluded, as it has been, is a 
complete travesty of the democratic process. 
 
The residents of the western and northern parts of Boars Hill petitioned by a very large majority to 
join Sunningwell parish. You have tipped the whole thing on its head! It is of no concern to the 
Boars Hill residents that Wootton PC decided to build a village hall which it could not afford without 
taking out a big loan. Having ignored the wishes of Boars Hill for many years, Wootton PC is now 
trying to resist the loss of its Boars Hill “milch cow”. 
When Scotland and Wales were consulted on devolution, voters elsewhere (ie in England) were 
not asked if they would like to overturn the decision. The Boars Hill petition for a change came from 
the residents of the area requesting the change and those living elsewhere should not be allowed 
to block it. 
 
Wootton parish has three times the population of Sunningwell and, even after the requested 
changes, would still remain substantially larger.  
Cumnor parish has six times the population of Sunningwell and the Boars Hill part, which has 
asked to join Sunningwell, amounts to only about 30 voters of which over 80% want to join 
Sunningwell.  

104 Wootton Parish Council have spent a lot of time creating a wonderfully informative website about 
our Parish particularly around the history and walks within the Parish which includes the Boars Hill 
area. Reworking the website will be a considerable burden to undertake especially given how 
much time we we would prefer to spend making improvements to our Parish. 

105 I strongly oppose the proposal to make no change, the BHA survey clearly identifies that the 
majority of residents in the affected area would like a change. As a resident of Sunningwell, my 
view is solely based on what the residents of Boars Hill desire.  

106 Sunningwell Parish Council (SPC) accepted in good faith the request from the Boars Hill residents 
to join our parish. Sunningwell is quite a small parish and the boundary changes requested would 
make it more viable whilst still leaving the parishes of Wootton and Cumnor with substantially 
larger populations than Sunningwell. The changes would also fulfil a longstanding wish of Boars 
Hill residents to be within a single parish.  
 
The Boars Hill Association petition was demonstrably a well organised operation in line with the 
community governance legislation. The report was well presented and clearly showed that a very 
large majority of the residents in the petition area were in favour of revising the parish boundaries 
so that the western and northern parts of Boars Hill would join the rest of Boars Hill as a part of 
Sunningwell parish. 
 
The parish council discussed the latest online consultation at its monthly meeting yesterday, ie on 
28th July 2022.  
 
The Vale of White Horse District Council (the Vale) has twisted the original request of the residents 
so as to present a consultation which is a complete reversal of what was actually requested! This 
makes a mockery of the democratic process and has caused considerable dismay and indeed has 
prompted some of our councillors to express such disillusionment that they are considering 
resigning as councillors. 
 
SPC also notes that despite having written to the Vale on several occasions attaching its formal 
acceptance document, nevertheless the Vale has continued to post on line an erroneous document 

Page 67



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

which was neither discussed nor accepted by SPC. This original error was pointed out to Vale 
officers on a number of occasions with the request that it should be replaced with the correct 
formally debated and approved submission from SPC to the Vale. SPC considers the fact that the 
Vale has continued to ignore this is a serious dereliction of their duty of care and impartiality as it 
provides an incorrect document to consultees and thus is likely to distort the consultation results 
against SPC. 
 
A copy of the Boars Hill Association report as adopted by SPC is attached and some of the key 
messages asking that SPC have their correct submission put forward are shown below. 
 
From: Colin Weyer 
Sent: 02 March 2022 16:09 
To: Flowers, Michael 
Cc: Corrigan, Steven; Democratic Services; Clerk Sunningwell PC 
Subject: Community Governance Review committee meeting - URGENT 
 
**EXTERNAL** 
Dear Michael, 
 
I am concerned that the submission from Sunningwell Parish Council as set out in Appendix 5 is 
INCORRECT. 
 
I called yesterday and again today but, having had no reply, I am sending you this email. 
 
The minutes of our meeting held on 25th November made no definitive decision in this matter as 
shown below: 
 
156/21 Vale of White Horse parish boundary review 
The council has been advised by Vale of White Horse District Council’s Democratic department 
that a Community Governance Review will be undertaken in 2022, with any changes implemented 
for the 2023 elections. Changes can alter boundaries, council names, electoral arrangements and 
so on. 
Cllr James Greenman is keen to unite all of Boars Hill in one parish as the current arrangement 
has it divided between the parishes of Sunningwell and Wootton. He suggested the Boars Hill 
Association might like to seek parishioners’ views. Based on the outcome, the parish council could 
then consider putting a proposal to the Democratic department. 
The Boars Hill Association took up this suggestion and set up a petition in accordance with the 
legislation. 
 
As SPC was not due to meet until the end of January, on 6th January confirmation was obtained 
from Steven Corrigan that SPC could make its submission in early February. 
 
A very detailed report from the Boars Hill Association was submitted to SPC at its meeting held on 
27th January. 
This was formally accepted and approved; as per the minute below: 
 
14/22 Community Governance Review 
There is an upcoming Community Governance Review being undertaken by the Vale of White 
Horse Democratic Services Department and at its last meeting Sunningwell Parish Council 
proposed that the Boars Hill Association might wish to ascertain the views of those parts of Boars 
Hill not currently a part of Sunningwell with a view to amending the boundaries so that all of Boars 
Hill should be in Sunningwell Parish. 
The Boars Hill Association has prepared a formal report and request, following a petition delivered 
to each household in those parts of Boars Hill not currently in Sunningwell Parish. An Excel 
spreadsheet has been prepared detailing the names and addresses of all those who signed the 
petition which showed approximately two thirds in favour. 
The report and spreadsheet were formally accepted and approved by the meeting. The clerk was 
asked to forward the information to the Democratic Services Department of the Vale of White 
Horse District Council. 
 
The report and spreadsheet were submitted to Stephen Corrigan on 31st January (see email 
below) and he confirmed the same day that the report would be submitted to the meeting. 
However this was NOT done and instead a fairly meaningless appendix 5 was circulated which of 
course was not the SPC submission. 
 

Page 68



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

I now request that SPC minutes with explanations (as above), the SPC submission email (as 
below) together with the full adopted report (as attached) be circulated by email to all members of 
the committee, and their substitutes, in advance of Monday's meeting to allow them adequate time 
to read the report. If you wish to protect the identity of those who signed, the spreadsheet itself 
may be omitted.  
 
In view of the confusion please note that I will attend and wish to speak at your meeting on Monday 
evening at 7pm. 
 
Since the submission some more residents have taken the trouble to sign and deliver their petition 
forms requesting the boundary change and we now know the exact number of voters in the 
Cumnor area. 
The final summary is: 
Combined Results Wootton Cumnor Combined 
 
Total dwellings 184 13 197 
Voters per electoral roll 343 32 375 
Total signatures 209 26 235 
Percentage in favour 60.93% 81.25% 62.67% 
Majority 38 10 48 
 
Total Yes % of registered voters - excluding those households who did not answer when called on.  
66.35% 81.25% 67.72% 
 
+ Non-voting signatures 21  
 
As you will see this is a very substantial vote in favour of the new boundaries. 
 
Please let me have a copy of your email to the members of the committee. 
Many thanks 
Best regards 
Colin Weyer 
Chairman, 
Sunningwell Parish Council 
<redacted> 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
From: "Clerk Sunningwell PC"  
To: "Steven Corrigan"  
Sent: Monday, 31 January, 2022 10:45:19 
Subject: Sunningwell Parish boundary review 
 
Good morning Steven, 
 
This is with reference to our earlier emails on the upcoming Community Governance Review and 
Sunningwell Parish Council's proposal that the boundaries be amended so that all of Boars Hill can 
be in Sunningwell Parish please. 
 
I have attached the formal report and request, prepared by the Boars Hill Association together with 
the Excel spreadsheet detailing names and addresses of all those who signed the petition. 
 
These were formally accepted, approved and minuted at the Sunningwell Parish Council meeting 
held last Thursday on 27 January 2022. 
 
The Excel file includes the live formulas used to calculate the results and this will enable Vale's 
Democratic Services Department to satisfy themselves as to their reliability. 
The B0ars Hill Association has provided the original petition sheets which can be delivered to the 
Vale offices in Milton Park if required. 
 
Thank you for your help and for extending the deadline. 
 
With kind regards 
Brian 

Page 69



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

 
Brian Rixon  
Clerk and Responsible Financial Officer 
On behalf of Sunningwell Parish Council 
<redacted> 
Telephone <redacted>  
Email <redacted> 
 
======================================== 
Re: URGENT - Re: April 2022 District Councillors' Report to Parishes 1 April, 2022 19:24  
From: "colin weyer"  
To: "emily smith"  
Cc: "debby hallett" "Clerk Sunningwell PC"  
 
 
Thank you Emily, 
I attended that meeting and pointed out that this was incorrect and that the only decision made by 
SPC was on 27th January as shown below: 
 
The relevant minutes are: 
 
Council meeting on 25th November 2021. 
 
156/21 
Vale of White Horse parish boundary review 
The council has been advised by Vale of White Horse District Council’s Democratic department 
that a Community Governance Review will be undertaken in 2022, with any changes implemented 
for the 2023 elections. Changes can alter boundaries, council names, electoral arrangements and 
so on. 
 
Cllr James Greenman is keen to unite all of Boars Hill in one parish as the current arrangement 
has it divided between the parishes of Sunningwell and Wootton. He suggested the Boars Hill 
Association might like to seek parishioners’ views. Based on the outcome, the parish council could 
then consider putting a proposal to the Democratic department. 
 
And the operative minute from the meeting held on 27th January at which a formal request was 
made: 
 
14/22 
Community Governance Review 
There is an upcoming Community Governance Review being undertaken by the Vale of White 
Horse Democratic Services Department and at its last meeting Sunningwell Parish Council 
proposed that the Boars Hill Association might wish to ascertain the views of those parts of Boars 
Hill not currently a part of Sunningwell with a view to amending the boundaries so that all of Boars 
Hill should be in Sunningwell Parish. 
 
The Boars Hill Association has prepared a formal report and request, following a petition delivered 
to each household in those parts of Boars Hill not currently in Sunningwell Parish. An Excel 
spreadsheet has been prepared detailing the names and addresses of all those who signed the 
petition which showed approximately two thirds in favour. 
 
The report and spreadsheet were formally accepted and approved by the meeting. The clerk was 
asked to forward the information to the Democratic Services Department of the Vale of White 
Horse District Council. 
 
This minute was sent to Democratic Services and, after my pointing out the error, the relevant 
officers should have corrected their records. 
We need the documents to be corrected asap. 
Many thanks 
Best wishes 
Colin Weyer 
 
________________________________________ 
From: "emily smith"  

Page 70



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

To: "colin weyer", "debby hallett"  
Cc: "Clerk Sunningwell PC"  
Sent: Friday, 1 April, 2022 19:03:22 
Subject: Re: URGENT - Re: April 2022 District Councillors' Report to Parishes 
 
Hi Colin 
 
I got the information about Sunningwell's suggestion that Long Furlong may be moved into 
Wootton from the reports pack that the committee for community governance and electoral issues 
considered on 7th March. Appendix 5 on page 17 is the email request from Sunningwell Parish 
Council following your meeting on 25th November.  
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee, 
07/03/2022 19:00 (whitehorsedc.gov.uk) 
 
The link to this report is part of the information we are inviting public responses about. Are you 
saying the email request from the Parish Council is not accurately represented in Appendix 5?  
 
Thanks 
Emily 
 
Cllr Emily Smith 
Liberal Democrat Member for Botley and Sunningwell Ward 
Direct Line: <redacted> 
Executive Support Officer: <redacted> 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 
Advance notice of leave: 16th - 25th April, 27th May - 6th June 
 
Our privacy policies are available by clicking http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/contact-
us/requesting-information/data-protection/privacy-policy  
 
________________________________________ 
From: Colin Weyer 
Sent: 01 April 2022 17:32 
To: Hallett, Debby  
Cc: Smith, Emily; Clerk Sunningwell PC   
Subject: Re: URGENT - Re: April 2022 District Councillors' Report to Parishes 
 
**EXTERNAL** 
Many thanks Debby - C 
 
________________________________________ 
From: "debby hallett"  
To: "colin weyer"  
Cc: "emily smith", "Clerk Sunningwell PC"  
Sent: Friday, 1 April, 2022 17:14:19 
Subject: Re: URGENT - Re: April 2022 District Councillors' Report to Parishes 
 
Hi Colin.  
 
I will seek clarification for you the minute office doors open on Monday.  
 
Regards, 
Debby 
 
Debby Hallett 
Councillor for Botley & Sunningwell 
<redacted> 
 
Advance notice of leave:  
12-23 May, 8-16 Sep 2022 
 
________________________________________ 
From: Colin Weyer 
Sent: Friday, April 1, 2022 4:42:29 PM 

Page 71



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

To: Hallett, Debby  
Cc: Smith, Emily; Clerk Sunningwell PC  
Subject: URGENT - Re: April 2022 District Councillors' Report to Parishes 
 
**EXTERNAL** 
Dear Debby, 
Thank you for your interesting report. 
You must forgive me for thinking that this is indeed a prank given that I am rather confused by two 
aspects of the boundary review relating to Sunningwell parish as set out in your report and the 
Vale website consultation page. 
 
Firstly, in your report you state: 
 
"Sunningwell (Wootton, Cumnor) – amend the parish boundary to include more of Boars Hill and 
some homes in Cumnor parish, and also to remove Long Furlong Road and the surrounding 
section of Sunningwell Road and place them into Wootton Parish" 
 
I must advise you that Sunningwell parish has passed no resolution requesting to the removal of 
the Long Furlong Road community from our parish - in fact the council has not even discussed it. 
 
Then on the VoWH consultation page, to which you link in your report, it says:  
 
"Sunningwell (Wootton and Cumnor) – amending the parish boundary to include the area of Boars 
Hill currently in Wootton and Cumnor parishes and amending the parish name to reflect the 
change" 
 
In this case there is (correctly) no reference to Long Furlong! 
 
I must advise you that Sunningwell parish has passed no resolution relating to amending the name 
and, again, the matter has not even been discussed. 
 
I am very concerned to see these two inconsistent and confusing matters included given that our 
parish council has neither requested nor discussed either of them. 
 
Please can you take urgent steps to have these corrected in all necessary documents - not least 
those in the public domain! 
 
If the Vale has powers to suggest or make its own changes in regard to these matters, then I have 
to say I would be greatly disturbed that no one at the Vale has had the courtesy to discuss them 
with us first. 
 
Please advise when all the necessary corrections have been made. 
Many thanks. 
 
Best regards 
Colin Weyer 
Chairman, SPC 
<redacted> 
 
________________________________________ 
From: "debby hallett"  
To: "emily smith"  
Sent: Friday, 1 April, 2022 12:11:39 
Subject: April 2022 District Councillors' Report to Parishes 
 
Hi everybody - this email is going out to all councillors and clerks. (I don't much like pranking, so 
everything here is legitimate.) 
 
Our April 2022 report is on Dropbox here: 
https://www.dropbox.com/s/fhyr4qgaxd30rqe/Apr%2022.pdf?dl=0 
 
And all the historical reports are here: http://cllrdebbyhallett.com/district-councillor-reports/ 
 
I hope you're all well and happy, and that your life is full of meaning.  
 

Page 72



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

Regards,  
Debby 
 
Cllr Debby Hallett 
Liberal Democrat member for Botley & Sunningwell ward 
<redacted> 

107 Dividing the parish would detriment the residents of Wootton village 

108 If their is a change to boundaries then their would also be an implication regarding who can have a 
tenancy agreement at Wootton Allotments possibly. 

109 Email response received below.  
 
Your two choices regarding parish boundary changes make no sense. 
 
One is to combine Wootton with Boars Hill which is a terrible idea a. because half of Boars Hill is 
already in Sunningwell (I am) and b. because the two areas are not remotely alike, the one being 
purely residential while the other is much more agricultural/residential 
 
Two was to do nothing - odd as two thirds of Boars Hill residents have voted to join up with 
Sunningwell - something you have apparently ignored. 
 
If these really are the only options I would do nothing but it is not very democratic 

110 Response below received via email.  
 
Wootton Parish Council wishes to express its support in retaining the existing Parish Boundary and 
to rename Wootton Parish to Wootton and Boars Hill. 
 
Despite the Vale of White Horse DC’s link to the online survey being published after the publication 
of the Community Magazine the Parish Council has obtained 234 signatures on a petition to 
demonstrate the desire of residents to maintain the existing boundary. 
 
The Parish centers around the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre and Pre-School, the 
Boars Hill and Wootton Cricket Club, the Community Park, all of which receive significant financial 
support from Wootton Parish Council in addition to the Bystander Public House and the 
Besselsleigh 
Road shops, which are at the heart of the Community and are all resources extensively used by 
residents of the area which has been identified for review. Currently the Boars Hill Association 
delivers their publication to Wootton Village as this shares the same “Boars Hill” postal address 
were 
some areas of Boars Hill to be separated from the existing Parish, this would cause ill-feeling 
among those residents. 
 
Additionally, the area under review represents a significant portion of the Parish’s income from 
Precept and given that the loan on the Community Centre was taken with a term of 50 years, the 
result would be a significant increase of precept on the remaining population. 
 
Although different parts of the village, such as Old Wootton, Boars Hill, and the B4017 corridor, 
have their distinctive social and architectural characters, the village is a well-integrated community 
as is evidenced in the replies to the questionnaire sent out in preparing our Joint Neighbourhood 
Plan with St Helen Without (made December 2019). There was a strong feeling of belonging to a 
neighbourhood and a strong satisfaction with the area as a place to live. This sense of community 
has been enhanced by the lack of significant housing development in the parish since 1970, apart 
from the relatively small Deerhurst Park. While there will be some development over the next ten 
years - notably a new housing estate on the old industrial park - there will not be a substantial 
increase in population and little change to the village’s existing character. 
 
Wootton is a medium-sized rural parish with a diverse social, economic and, to a growing degree, 
ethnic profile, and the Wootton PC see no reason why its boundaries should be altered under the 
Community Governance Review. It also feels that the views of this diverse community are well 
represented on the current Parish Council which has a positive gender, age and work experience 
balance and has ambitions to enhance further the parish’s pleasant and welcoming environment in 
the coming years. 

 

Page 73



6. Are there any other comments you would like to make to support or oppose the 
proposal to make no change to the boundary between Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor parishes?  

 
answered 110 

skipped 133 

 
 

7. If you have any alternative suggestions to make that fall within the criteria set out 
above, please provide them below:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 51 

1 I suggest that in future, councils proposing change to boundaries must consult directly with everyone 
directly impacted by the proposed change. 

2 The Boars Hill part of the parish should have a guaranteed seat on the parish council, elected by 
Boars Hill residents.  
 
This would ensure that their interests will always have a voting voice on the parish council. 

3 If the proposal went ahead then there must be a payment made on an annual basis from the new 
parish to Wootton for the upkeep of the services that Wootton parish provides or the residents of the 
new parish need to be excluded from using them.  

4 Leave the damned boundaries alone. Changing boundaries and parish names just creates costs for no 
benefit 

5 In future can parish councils write in Plain English (avoid use of passive tense, etc)? And explain 
proposals with both parties’ viewpoints, with bulleted lists of pros and cons and examples of where the 
relevant parishes have locked horns in the past, to uncover the real issues for separating/taking 
action? I don’t want to read lengthy essays - just a brief, comprehensive report.  

6 no 

7 I support the proposed NEW boundary 

8 Boars Hill should be linked with Sunningwell. 

9 Whole of Boars Hill to be own parish, along with Sunningwell. 

10 None  

11 Those set out in the original petition. 

12 Combine the whole of Boars Hill into one parish, specifically as part of Sunningwell parish 

13 Merge Boars Hill and Sunningwell Parishes 

14 I WISH BOARS HILL TO BE JOINED AS A PARISH WITH SUNNINGWELL 

15 As stated above, I strongly oppose the proposals; Boars Hill should be combined with Sunningwell. 

16 We have already voted as residents of boars hill. 

17 Allow boars hill to become part of sunningwell parish as voted.  

18 Boars Hill should be linked to the Parish of Sunningwell in its entirety  

19 Yes : alter boundaries by taking that part of Boars Hill currently within Wootton and transferring to 
Sunningwell. 

20 The Vale of White Horse DC should become part of a unitary authority within a new Oxfordshire 
Council. 

21 Make entire Boars Hill part of the Sunningwell Parish Council. 

Page 74



7. If you have any alternative suggestions to make that fall within the criteria set out 
above, please provide them below:  

22 The Sunningwell Parish Council are the best representative for this area. They are the council I would 
like to represent us. I do NOT want to be part of Wooton Boars Hill 

23 Boars Hill should be in the parish of Sunningwell, not Wootto, as requested by the majority of Boars 
Hill Residents. 

24 To unite Boars Hill under the parish of Sunningwell which shares the identity, of a mixed residential 
and rural area with the whole of Boars Hill.  
 
This single move will ensure a far greater more effective and convenient representation of the 
residents of Boars Hill and the current arbitary split of our community between the parishes of Wootton 
and of Sunningwell. 

25 I strongly support no change in the Parish Council boundaries at this stage. 
 
However, I do believe that within the next 4 years Boars Hill (but not the wider Boars Hill post code 
area) should have its own Parish Council.  
 
What those of us who are residents of what is regarded as Boars Hill are so aware of, and treasure 
about the area, is that it is a close-knit and very caring community with strong connections to Oxford 
University and historically home to many nationally know artists, sculptors and poets.  

26 Please see above - I would support the previously documented (and majority supported) petition to 
combine Boars Hill into a single parish with SUNNINGWELL, NOT WOOTTON 

27 Please see above - neither of the suggestions given in the consultation reflect the previously 
expressed desire of Boars Hill residents to be united in a single parish with Sunningwell. 
 
Renaming the parish 'Boars Hill and Wootton' or similar is nonsensical since much of Boars Hill is 
already in Sunningwell. 

28 Leave things as they are. There is no problem for anyone unless the ‘real’ reason for a new boundary 
divide is the one I have indicated above.  

29 Boars Hill extends throughout of Wootton Parish and recognition needs to be made that a much larger 
amount of properties have Boars Hill in the address not just those 'on the top'.  

30 I propose that boars hill should form part of Sunningwell parish NOT Wootton 
 
Sunningwell is mostly agricultural as well as residential and fit in more with Boars Hill. 

31 I believe the whole of Boars Hill should be in Sunningwell parish which would make us a more 
cohesive community and we can all be treated the same. We can all attend the various events that 
may be open to Sunningwell parish. 

32 Make Boars Hill part of a Sunningwell parish. 

33 They have already been proposed and apparently ignored 

34 Boars hill could merge with Sunningwell… but this is not proposed.. 

35 I would incorporate all of Boars Hill into Sunningwell parish 

36 Integrate Boars Hill to Sunningwell as above rather than the inappropriate proposals above 

37 Change border to incorporate all of Boars hill into sunningwell and boars hill parish.  

38 Boars Hill should be completely incorporated within Sunningwell Parish. 

39 Why do you deliberately try to mess up the original consultation. 
The original consultation results were quite clear: the residents of Boars hill that were in Wootton 
Parish wanted to be moved into Sunningwell. 
 
It really is not difficult to do 
So DO IT 

40 I support the alternative proposal to include Boars Hill with Sunningwell in a PC with more coherence 
of interest of residents.  

Page 75



7. If you have any alternative suggestions to make that fall within the criteria set out 
above, please provide them below:  

41 Boars Hill and Sunningwell in their r entirety should be joined together and become Sunningwell and 
Boars Hill.  

42 Creating a separate Boars Hill parish would seem to be a more interesting proposition, worth 
consideration. 

43 I believe the changes to the boundary should be made as proposed. 

44 Make Boars Hill part of Sunningwell parish. 

45 Allow Boars Hill to be part of Sunningwell parish and respect the wishes of the residents to do so. 

46 PLEASE BEAR IN MIND THAT QUESTION 6 IS CONFUSING AND WE ARE AWARE THAT SOME 
PEOPLE HAVE CLICKED “STRONGLY OPPOSE” THINKING THEY HAVE STRONGLY OPPOSED 
THE BOUNDARY CHANGE BUT THEY HAVE ACTUALLY STRONGLY OPPOSED NOT MAKING 
ANY CHANGES.  

47 Half of Boars Hill is already within Sunningwell parish and it makes perfect sense to also incorporate 
the small area currently under discussion into Sunningwell.  

48 Make it clear Boars Hill inclusion through a name change from Wootton Parish Council to Wootton and 
Boars Hill Parish Council just as we do in Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club and have done for many 
years.  

49 It could be possible for Wootton parish council to adopt all of Boars hill. 

50 The revised boundaries as originally requested overwhelmingly by Boars Hill residents should be 
implemented. 

51 Sunningwell Parish Council asks that the Vale implement the very clear and overwhelming request of 
the Boars Hill residents as adopted by SPC. 

 

 
answered 51 

skipped 192 

 

8. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  

File Type 
Average 

Size 
Files 

Uploaded 

.pdf 2346102Kb 2 

To view the files uploaded, go into the individual results. 
answered 2 

skipped 241 

 
Submission from Boars Hill Association as attached. 
 
Petition submitted by Wootton Parish Council with 234 signatures opposing any 
change to the boundary between Sunningwell and Wootton parishes. The wording of 
the petition is set out below: 
 

Save our parish 
 

There has been a proposal made to the District Council that Wootton Parish Council 
should be split up and Boars Hill be moved into Sunningwell Parish. 
 

Page 76



We believe that the parish should be kept intact for many historical, administrative 
and financial reasons and that by splitting up the parish it will negatively impact the 
remaining residents of the parish. You can read the full article on the reasons we 
believe we're better keeping the boundary as is at the following link: 
http://tinyurl.com/WPC2022AGR 
 
We, the undersigned, “strongly support” the district council's recommendation NOT 
to make any change to the boundary and split the parish of Wootton. 
 
 
 

11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 57 

1 Whenever boundaries are reviewed there is always in my mind a suspicion of gerrymandering. This 
suspicion would be allayed by more open consultation before the publication of the final documents. 

2 The strength of feeling in the Community is very clear and should be taken into consideration. The 
majority of the parish does not wish to be divided. 

3 As I live within Wootton village it does not seem to me theres any practical sense for BoarsHill 
residence requesting to leave Wootton parish as Sunningwell Village have very little to offer, if this 
did come about with the residents of Boars Hill Reticence still expect to use all the amenities which 
they are no doubt enjoying at this moment of Wootton Parish 
There is also the point to make hear of the financing this move of those without any contribution to 
the parishes. 

4 None, totally agree to keep the make up of the community as it currently is 

5 Don’t make any changes. Those in Wootton recognise ourselves as being part of the wider area  

6 Sunningwell should be included in the name. 

7 I really appreciate you sharing this info and asking for feedback  

8 Not at this time unfortunately as I have only just moved to wootton village and it would be a shame if 
they include boars hill in the boundary so I oppose it.  

9 no 

10 I am disappointed that after significant Boars Hill community commentary that these are the two 
poorly considered and designed points for consultation. It reinforces the idea that current governance 
processes are not working effectively. 

11 Listen to the Boars Hill Association who are more closely involved in the community here and able to 
speak for us with authority. They know the feelings of the community. 

12 None 

13 It make sense to join Sunningwell parish as all residents of Boars Hill would be united, under one 
governance structure, which must be better for local democracy.  

14 I am shocked to find that the proposal made by the majority of Boars Hill residents has been totally 
ignored. Why doesn't Wootton parish listen, even to its own Boars Hill residents? 

15 See my comments to previous question which I repeat here. I wish Boars Hill to be joined as a parish 
with Sunningwell. 

16 A massive planning application by Peking University Business School is pending, but it lies on the 
boundary of Wootton parish. while much of the site is in Sunningwell. Division of interest between the 
two parishes is highly undesirable, especially as it separated from a nature conservation area in 
Sunningwell, by a two strand barbed wire fence, and the whole area is in the Green Belt.  

Page 77

http://tinyurl.com/WPC2022AGR


11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

17 No. I expect you will do what you want despite the clearly expressed view of boars hill residents to 
change the boundaries so that all of boars hill is within Sunningwell parish.  

18 No further comment. 

19 Residents of boars hill have voted to join sunningwell parish council.  

20 As before we have already voted to join sunningwell parish and strongly oppose your options. 

21 In a recent poll two thirds of Boars Hill residents who voted wished the boundaries to be changed so 
that Boars Hill fell wholly within Sunningwell Parish. Why isn't this option made available to vote 
upon? 

22 Please refer to the petition already given to you.  

23 It is very odd that the question says “no change” when that is not what the Boar’s Hill residents 
wished.  

24 why is the district counsel interfering in parish business and trying to overturn parish council 
decisions? 

25 Yes. Speak to the Boars Association Chairman and members. I accept and support their views. 

26 Listen to the residents of Boars Hill 

27 No 

28 Unite Boars Hill in Sunningwell Parish 

29 I thought we had already voted to change the boundaries to join Sunningwell. Why has this been 
raised again? It doesn’t feel very democratic.  

30 Very poor questions to vote on. Most un democratic 

31 No 

32 To allow the part of Boars Hill that at present is within the Wootton parish to be taken into the 
Sunningwell parish is the only sensible move that will reinforce community representation and action. 

33 I think I have already made all the comments that it is necessary/relevant to make, BUT: 
 
Boars Hill is a very close-knit community. The Boars Hill Association, started by Maud and Abi 
Rosenthal about 50 years go, have a programme of talks and social events which local residents 
take part in. Historically, Boars Hill is know nationally and internationally because of its connections 
academically with the University but also because of the artist, sculptors (such as Oscar Nemon) and 
poets - too many to mention (although get a copy of "Oxford's Parnassus" by Philip Stewart if you 
want to know about our poets) - who have made Boars Hill their home. It has connections with 
Laurence of Arabia and has been referred to in such novels at "Brideshead Revisited". 
 
Essentially, I get back to the fact that Boars Hill is unique locally and deserves its own Parish Council 
in early (2 years) course. 

34 It would have been helpful if this review had taken into account the petition which was already run 
concerning this issue, and which demonstrated a clear desire on the part of the majority (2/3) of 
Boars Hill residents to be part of Sunningwell parish. Setting up a review in way that has been 
performed here presupposes a specific outcome, and it is clear from the previous petition that that 
outcome is not the one favoured by a majority of residents. 
I do not understand how the opinion of Wootton residents (who outnumber Boars Hill residents) 
should not be allowed to influence any suggested move for Boars Hill residents out of their current 
Sunningwell parish. This is surely a matter for Boars Hill and Sunningwell. 

35 Please note the previous petition stating that the majority of Boars Hill residents would like to be 
united in a single parish with Sunningwell - NOT with Wootton or Cumnor. 

36 I am saddened that the proposal to move the boundary appears to have been driven by the 'Boars 
Hill Residents Association' whose members dominate Sunningwell Parish Council. These two 
organisations have in effect self proclaimed themselves as the only residents of Boars Hill. As stated 
previously they are incorrect. Boars Hill extends far beyond the proposed boundary change. I am 
upset that Sunningwell Parish Council has taken the consultation of the Boars Hill Residents 
Association as being the wishes of all of Boars Hill. If the proposal is supported to change the 

Page 78



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

boundary I fear it will have been driven by affluence and a desire for segregation from others less 
well-off and I want no part of it. If the boundary change goes ahead then it would over-dominate the 
less well off Residents in Sunningwell Parish. The Wootton & Boars Hill Parish name change is a 
good idea. As stated previously Wootton Parish is predominately on Boars Hill and is reflected in 
houses addresses already. 

37 DO NOT MERGE WITH WOTTON  

38 We are shocked and greatly disturbed that the petition by the two-thirds majority of residents of 
Boars Hill included at present in Wootton and Cumnor Parishes to join Sunningwell Parish has been 
completely ignored,  

39 I responded earlier -- two responses, one to each question (it seems one combined response was 
not allowed). 
In my response to the name change proposal I might have ticked 'strongly support' when I meant to 
check 'strongly oppose'. 
I am submitting this response now in order to change my earlier response to what I really meant: 
strongly oppose. 
<redacted> 
<redacted> 

40 Please seriously consider other proposals as the ones that have been suggested are unsatisfactory. 

41 It is very clear that the vast majority of Boars Hill residents wish to be part of Sunningwell parish. The 
local councils should agree to the wishes of Boars Hill residents and not play games with motions 
tabled like these 2! 

42 The substantial majority of those residents of Boars Hill who at the moment fall within Wootton have 
clearly supported the amalgamation of the Whole of Boars Hill within Sunningwell.  

43 You appear to have ignored the petition change of boundary issued some months ago... Why? 

44 No. 

45 There is no reason to change traditional parish boundaries as far as I can see apart from perhaps 
vanity which should not be encouraged or supported in these matters.  

46 The proposals seem perverse, and fly in the face of reason and the opinions of those most directly 
affected by the proposals.Please reconsider, and consider the third proposal -- to make all of Boars 
Hill part of Sunningwell Parish. Thank you 

47 The review should reflect the democratically expressed wishes of the residents of the Wootton and 
Cumnor parts of Boars Hill to be part of Sunningwell parish. 

48 The Governance Review has come up with two proposals which do not reflect the wishes of the 
residents of Boars Hill at all. The vast majority of Boars Hill residents want to belong to a single 
parish and for that parish to be Sunningwell. Neither wish is reflected in the two proposals, which 
seems perplexing and undemocratic. 

49 A short time ago I did complete this survey but think that I failed to submit it, therefore I am 
completing again for submission. 

50 It's not clear where the proposal for change came from, or that it delivers any benefit to the residents 
of Boars Hill. Is this a squabble between the existing parish councils over money? 
Uniting Boars Hill into a separate parish would seem to provide a single area with common interests 
across it. I have no idea whether this would work in terms of process or finances. 

51 Proper consideration should be given to the recent boundary change request on behalf of the Boars 
Hill community. The relevant councils should proactively engage with local residents expressing 
reasonable comments and wishes. During this recent process that engagement has not always been 
evident. Interested parties have been excluded from relevant communications from the authorities. 
Some political maneuvering at the highest level has been apparently evidenced. 

52 I would expect to hear in advance about these proposals. Democracy depends on voters being able 
to consider proposals with more involvemnet of the Council officers. 

53 Respect the outcome of the Boars Hill residents vote to be part of Sunningwell parish. 

Page 79



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

54 In Summary I strongly support the proposal NOT to make a boundary change and to rename the 
Parish for the following reasons: 
 
1. History 
 
The civil parish of Wootton has existed for more than a century and today is an evolving, dynamic 
community with a genuine identity. 
 
Until the late nineteenth century, the hamlets of Wootton and Old Boars Hill were outlying parts of 
Cumnor parish. Since then they have formed a separate parish with the same boundaries as today 
and over the years have developed into a single large village of some 3,000 inhabitants, centred 
around the Besselsleigh Rd shops, the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre and the 
Bystander Public House. Although different parts of the village, such as Old Wootton, Boars Hill, and 
the B4017 corridor, have their distinctive social and architectural characters, the village is a well-
integrated community, as is evidenced in the replies to the questionnaire sent out in preparing our 
Joint Neighbourhood Plan with St Helen Without (made December 2019). This showed a strong 
feeling of belonging to a neighbourhood and strong satisfaction with the area as a place to live. 
Wootton is an economically and socially diverse community with an evolving ethnic mix which 
reflects the present character of Britain in the twenty-first century. 
 
2. Administration 
 
Wootton Parish Council is in the fortunate position of having made a Neighbourhood Plan that gives 
the Council and its constituents a legally binding say in the future development of the existing parish. 
 
Wootton Parish Council (and St Helen Without Parish Council, as it was a joint plan) have had a fully 
made Neighbourhood Plan in place since 2019. Neighbourhood Plans that have already been 
finalised and adopted cannot be revoked even if parish boundaries are changed. Thus, our Plans’ 
policies will remain in place and be enforced for the area of land that they cover, even if that land 
becomes part of a different parish. Moreover, any amendments made to our Neighbourhood Plan in 
the future would still apply to Boars Hill, and Sunningwell Parish Council would have to apply those 
new Neighbourhood Plan policies. In addition, as Neighbourhood Plans’ areas cannot overlap, 
Sunningwell Parish Council cannot create a Neighbourhood Plan that includes the area of ours. 
Moving Boars Hill into Sunningwell Parish, therefore, opens up a can of worms. 
 
3. Finances 
 
The boundary change would have a detrimental effect on the finances of Wootton Parish Council 
and its ability to meet its current obligations and aims. 
 
In 2010, Wootton Parish Council took out a government loan of £60,000 to support the 
redevelopment of the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre, a vital parish amenity. The loan 
was for fifty years at a fixed interest rate of 4.6 per cent. Each year the Council makes repayments of 
£3,076.60, and the current outstanding loan in £55,003.91. The total cost of repayment over 50 
years is £153, 830. In consequence, Wootton Parish Council is committed to putting aside £3,000 
p.a. to pay off the loan until 2060. At present, Wootton Parish Council receives a precept of c. 
£60,000. This is a large enough sum to allow the Council to put aside £3,000 per annum to pay off 
the loan without undue difficulty. Were Boars Hill to be detached from Wootton, the precept would be 
considerably reduced, as the precept is determined by the size of the population, and the percentage 
of the budget dedicated each year to paying off the loan increased. This would mean that the Council 
would no longer have the same amount of money each year to enhance traffic-controlling measures, 
which is a present priority, and the broader quality of life in the parish to which it is committed in 
accordance with its made Neighbourhood Plan. With a lower precept, for instance, it would not have 
been possible to create the recently established Children’s Community Park opposite the church, 
which each year is being improved. 
 
4. Fairness 
 
The residents of Boars Hill have always made full use of the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community 
Centre and belong to many of the societies that enjoy its facilities. 
 
As Sunningwell Parish has no equivalent Community Centre, the Boars Hill residents will continue to 
do use WADSCC, just as they will continue to use the other amenities in the village, such as the 
cricket club and field (already called The Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club), primary school, St 
Peter’s church and the community park. All these community facilities are supported financially by 

Page 80



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

Wootton Parish Council either directly or indirectly (through a grant to the Wootton Primary School 
PTA to provide laptops for home learning during lockdown, for instance). It seems very unjust that 
the residents of a new, smaller Wootton Parish should pay a higher proportion per head towards 
repaying the Community Centre loan and maintaining other existing amenities in the village, while 
residents of Boars Hill, who use these facilities, contribute nothing at all. It is all the more unfair that 
as the overall precept will be smaller, the amount available to spend on these local amenities will be 
reduced. 

55 It is quite surprising and extremely disappointing to find that the VoWH District Council seems to 
have gone out of its way to circumvent the clearly expressed wishes of our Boars Hill community. 

56 The process has been really confusing and I didn’t realise we needed to complete a second survey 
having already done one  

57 No other comments apart from it would be a shame. Wootton has a lot of facilities and hardworking 
members of our Parish try their best for our community with little funding as it is. 

 

 
answered 57 

skipped 186 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

   

 Boars Hill Association   ‐   Parish Boundary Review 
. 

Summary 
 
The Boars Hill Association has long felt that the community of Boars Hill would be better 
served if it was not, broadly, divided between two civil parishes. The BHA has taken the 
opportunity of the upcoming review of parish boundaries to invite the residents of the western 
part of Boars Hill to consider a transfer to Sunningwell parish. 
 
Although, when visited, there was no reply from a number of households, nevertheless 208 
voters out of 343 signed a petition calling for revised boundaries as detailed below. This 
represents 60.6% of all voters. But, excluding those households who did not answer when 
called on, 66.0% of registered voters were in favour.   
 
Background 
 
The residents of Boars Hill form a very distinct community with a strong sense of identity.  
The Boars Hill Association (BHA) was founded in 1974 as a residents’ association and its 
constitution states:   
 
“The purpose of the Association shall be to engender a sense of identity and community among the 
residents of Boars Hill including the provision of a forum for the presentation of information, 
entertainment and exchange of views among the residents of Boars Hill and to provide a focal point for 
discussion, representation and action in respect of any issue of interest or concern to the community of 
Boars Hill in Oxfordshire” 
 
Further information on the BHA constitution may be found on the BHA website: 
https://boarshill.info/background-to-bha/ 
 
For almost 50 years every household has received a free quarterly Newsletter, now in full 
colour, which is also distributed via email to nearly 300 residents on the BHA database. A pdf 
of the latest Newsletter may be seen here: https://boarshill.info/latest-newsletter/   The majority 
of households pay an annual subscription to the BHA and participate more fully in the activities 
organised by the BHA. 
 
During the recent Covid-19 pandemic, the BHA established a support hub for the Boars Hill 
community which was officially recognised by the Vale of White Horse District Council (VoWH 
DC). 
 
Proposed Boundary Change 
 
The Boars Hill boundaries have been laid down by the BHA since the 1970s as shown on the 
BHA map. See: https://boarshill.info/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/BHA-boundaries-10-
final2.jpg  See also Appendix 3 below.  The boundaries are delineated to coincide with Land 
Registry cadastral parcels so as to avoid splitting residential holdings. 
 
At the end of November 2021, the BHA became aware that a parish boundary review was to 
be undertaken by the VoWH DC.  The BHA has held a very long standing view that Boars Hill 
would benefit from a community cohesion viewpoint if it were not divided largely between 
Sunningwell and Wootton parishes.  
 
 

Page 82



 
The existing parish boundaries typically follow old agricultural field ditches and are mostly 
obsolete having been delineated in the 19th century at a time when there were hardly any 
houses on Boars Hill. Today there are numerous anomalies such as the division of residential 
gardens between different parishes and in one case, at least, the boundary runs through the 
middle of a dwelling house. In the case of Lincombe Lane, one branch belongs to Wootton 
parish but is completely cut off from the rest of the parish as it is necessary to travel through 
another branch of Lincombe Lane which belongs to Sunningwell parish in order to reach the 
rest of the parish. 
 

The BHA notes that the Local Government Boundary Commission gives guidance on 
community governance reviews and in particular notes that this provides for public petitions to 
trigger such reviews. The guidance stresses the importance of community cohesion and that 
the views of local communities and inhabitants are of central importance.  
 
Para 39 states:  
 
“In recent years, the Government has been keen to encourage more community engagement. The 
2006 White Paper confirmed this development further stressing the intention to build on the existing 
parish structure improving capacity to deliver better services, and to represent the community’s 
interests.” 
 
Whilst Para 40 states: 
 
“Under the 2007 Act, local electors throughout England can petition their principal council for a 
community governance review to be undertaken. The petition must set out at least one 
recommendation that the petitioners want the review to consider making. These recommendations can 
be about a variety of matters including inter alia:  
 

 the alteration of boundaries of existing parishes 
 a strong, inclusive community 
 reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; 
 the impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; 

 
Para 50 states: 
 
“… it is desirable that a parish should reflect a distinctive and recognisable community of place, with its 
own sense of identity. The views of local communities and inhabitants are of central importance.” 
 

Accordingly in early December 2021 the officers of the BHA drafted an explanatory leaflet 
incorporating a map and petition which was discussed, amended and then approved by the full 
committee of the BHA. This was subsequently distributed to all households in the western part 
of Boars Hill which currently belong to Wootton parish.  The BHA necessarily had to 
summarise the key arguments in favour of the recommended change and it is not for us to 
consider and raise all the possible factors which might be debated on either side in a leaflet 
advocating community cohesion on Boars Hill.  As a courtesy, a copy of the circular was sent 
to both the Sunningwell and Wootton parish clerks. The circular gives further explanation for 
the changes sought and a copy is shown as Appendix 1 below. 
 

The BHA feels that the predominantly semi-rural community of Boars Hill has far more in 
common with Sunningwell parish, which is essentially rural in nature and to which the eastern 
part of Boars Hill already belongs, rather than the larger parish of Wootton.  Wootton parish 
has a population which is about three times the size of Sunningwell and, after the proposed 
boundary change, would still remain substantially larger even without counting the various 
housing developments currently proposed in Wootton.  
 Page 83



 
The BHA has also been aware for some years that Wootton PC appears very focussed on the 
affairs of Wootton and, by contrast, appears very disinterested in the concerns of Boars Hill 
residents who live in the Wootton part of the Hill. This has been apparent not only to members 
of the BHA committee, but also to many residents when they have attended meetings to raise 
matters of great concern to Boars Hill.  By contrast Boars Hill residents have noted various 
projects implemented by Sunningwell PC which have benefitted Boars Hill. 
 

The circular was distributed to the Wootton part of Boars Hill by BHA volunteers and after a 
few days volunteers started to call on dwellings in the affected area.  However they were 
somewhat hampered by the Christmas and New Year holiday period, when more people were 
away than usual, and, it is thought, by some residents still shielding from Covid-19. 
 

Nevertheless 208 voters out of 343 have signed a petition calling for revised boundaries as 
detailed below. This represents 60.6% of all registered voters. But, excluding those 
households who did not answer when called on, 66.0% of registered voters were in favour (see 
separate spread sheet). In addition, a further 21 adult residents who are not on the current 
electoral roll also signed.   
 

We attach as Appendix 4 a map showing the location and number of petition forms signed for 
each house. The votes in favour of a change are well distributed throughout the area.     
The BHA would like to thank VoWH Democratic Services Dept. for kindly providing a sanitised 
list of voter numbers for the western part of Boars Hill.  
 
Cumnor Parish 
 

As an additional matter, there are a few properties in the extreme eastern part of Cumnor 
parish on Boars Hill, about a dozen in total, which merited consultation at the same time. 
 

The residents living in the extreme eastern salient of Cumnor parish are presently completely 
cut off from direct road access with the rest of Cumnor parish. The existing parish boundary 
actually dissects two of the properties whilst another four are directly adjacent to the parish 
boundary. All the properties concerned form a part of the community of Boars Hill and 
represent just a half of one percent of Cumnor parish which has a total population about six 
times that of Sunningwell parish.   
 

A similar circular with a map and petition has resulted in 25 (c 83%) out of about 30 residents 
being in favour of the boundary change as set out.  As a courtesy, a copy of the circular was 
sent to the Cumnor parish clerk and is reproduced as Appendix 2 below.  
 
Our Request 
 

A schedule of houses showing the names of those who have signed is attached in the 
separate Excel spread sheet. The original petition forms are available for inspection upon 
request.  
 

In light of all the above, the Boars Hill Association hereby requests that the clear wishes of the 
residents of Wootton parish who live in the western part of Boars Hill and those of the extreme 
east of Cumnor parish as expressed in the attached petitions be accepted and implemented as 
provided for in the legislation so that the whole of the community of Boars Hill falls within one 
parish. 
 

Kate O'Donovan 
Chair, for the BHA. 
 
 

Page 84



Appendix 1 

 

 

   

 Boars Hill Association   ‐   Parish Boundary Review 
. 

The District Council is currently reviewing local government parish boundaries. 
 

The community of Boars Hill is presently divided into two halves: the western part falls under 
Wootton parish and the eastern part is in Sunningwell parish.  Many residents feel that Boars 
Hill is a single clearly defined community and that it should be wholly in one parish. The 
boundary review presents an opportunity to request that the western part of Boars Hill should 
be merged with Sunningwell parish.  Boars Hill would then be united providing greater 
community cohesion and be better able to address matters of common interest.  The revised 
boundary would be based on official land registry records so that properties would not be split. 
  

There is also dissatisfaction among many Boars Hill Wootton parish residents with Wootton 
Parish Council’s apparent lack of concern in Boars Hill interests, particularly in the last few 
years when there has been a clear disregard of Boars Hill residents’ views during some council 
meetings. 
 

Wootton is a large parish with about three times the population of Sunningwell parish.  Even 
after such a boundary change Wootton would still be substantially larger than Sunningwell and 
due to grow even bigger with proposed development.  Sunningwell parish would welcome the 
addition of the western part of Boars Hill.  
 

The very long standing BHA boundaries, upon which these civil parish changes are based, 
would not alter ecclesiastical boundaries therefore church membership would not be affected. 
 

The map overleaf demonstrates the proposed new arrangements.  If you have any questions 
please do email us:  bha@boarshill.info 
 

The district council will not make changes against the wishes of the residents concerned but, 
equally, they will take note if most would like a change.  A decision to change, or not, is entirely 
in your hands.  That change is what this petition calls for.  
 

If you agree and would like to have the parish boundaries amended along the lines suggested 
please enter your full name and address and then sign where shown.  One form may be used 
for all voters resident at your address and all who are in favour should sign the form. If you 
need more space please email us or photocopy the form. Please note that only registered 
adult voters may sign this petition. We will collect your form in the next week or two. You may 
also drop it in to our BHA Secretary: Nigel Jones, Whitsun Meadows, Berkeley Road. 
 

Thank you for your attention.  -  Kate O’Donovan, Chairman, on behalf of the BHA. 
 

I / we the undersigned hereby request that the western part of Boars Hill be 
transferred to Sunningwell parish as set out above and overleaf. 
 

Full name Address Signature 
   

   

   

   Page 85



 

 
The proposed new boundaries coincide with Land Registry cadastral parcels. 
 
 

\ 
... ' \ 

•' ' .. I 

l 
\ 

l 
<. 

art of Boars 
www. boars hi 11. i nfo 

.· 

Page 86



 
Appendix 2 
 

 

   

 Boars Hill Association   ‐   Parish Boundary Review 
. 

The District Council is currently undertaking a 10 yearly review of local parish boundaries. 
 

The community of Boars Hill is broadly divided into two halves; the western part falls under 
Wootton parish and the eastern part is in Sunningwell parish.  The BHA, as well as many 
residents, have long felt that Boars Hill is a single clearly defined community and that it should 
be wholly in one civil parish. The boundary review presents an opportunity to request that the 
western part of Boars Hill should be merged with Sunningwell parish.  Boars Hill would then be 
largely united providing greater community cohesion and be better able to address matters of 
common interest.  Where possible the revised boundary would be based on official land 
registry records so that residential properties would not be split.  
  

The BHA, has been consulting in the Wootton part of Boars Hill where more than half of the 
residents have already supported joining Sunningwell parish.  
 

There are about a dozen households, like yours, in the extreme east of Cumnor parish which 
are wholly cut off from direct access with the rest of Cumnor. These residents are close to and 
form a more natural part of the Boars Hill community.  We hope very much you will take this 
opportunity to join the rest of us to create a single parish on Boars Hill. Sunningwell parish has 
indicated it would welcome the inclusion of residences from all parts of Boars Hill.  
 

The map overleaf demonstrates the proposed new arrangements.  If you have any questions 
please do email us:  bha@boarshill.info 
 

The district council will not make changes against the wishes of the residents concerned but, 
equally, they will take note if most would like a change.  The decision to request a change, or 
not, is entirely in your hands – the residents of eastern Cumnor.  That change is what this 
petition calls for.  
 

If you agree and would like to have the parish boundaries amended along the lines suggested 
please enter your full name and address and then sign where shown.  One form may be used 
for all voters resident at your address and all who are in favour should sign the form. If you 
need more space please email us or photocopy the form. Please note that only registered 
adult voters may sign this petition. We will collect your form in the next few days or you may 
drop it in to our BHA Secretary: Nigel Jones, Whitsun Meadows, Berkeley Road, OX1 5ET. 
 

Thank you for your attention.  -  Kate O’Donovan, Chairman, on behalf of the BHA. 
 

I / we the undersigned hereby request that the eastern part of Cumnor parish 
be transferred to Sunningwell parish as set out above and overleaf. 
 
 

Full name Address Signature 
   

   

   

   
Page 87



 

 
 
The proposed new boundaries coincide with Land Registry cadastral parcels. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 
 
 
Appendix 3 

 

 
BHA boundaries for Boars Hill 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Page 89



Appendix 4 

 
Location and number of petition signatories 

.· 

-
' ' ' \ .. y. ' I ! 

2 

' ) "''* 
22 

/ 
'!. 

l 
£ 

UPI>"•........., 

\ 
\ 
I • 

1 

--, 
n""' 

2 
. 

22 1 2 
2 

Y, . 
~ 1_, 

2 

---

3 -

21 
2 2 

1 

3 
Boars Hill 

'lli, 

Page 90



  
 

1 
 

Wootton Parish Council 
c/o Clerk to the Parish 

32 Lamborough Hill 
Wootton, Abingdon 

OX13 6BZ 
 

28th July 2022 

VWHDC Community Governance Review (2022) 
Response to the Proposal NOT to change the existing Parish Boundary and to the proposal to 

change Wootton Parish Council’s name to Wootton and Boars Hill Parish Council. 

Wootton Parish Council wishes to express its support in retaining the existing Parish Boundary and 
to rename Wootton Parish to Wootton and Boars Hill. 

Despite the Vale of White Horse DC’s link to the online survey being published after the 
publication of the Community Magazine the Parish Council has obtained 234 signatures on a 
petition to demonstrate the desire of residents to maintain the existing boundary. 

The Parish centers around the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre and Pre-School, the 
Boars Hill and Wootton Cricket Club, the Community Park, all of which receive significant financial 
support from Wootton Parish Council in addition to the Bystander Public House and the Besselsleigh 
Road shops, which are at the heart of the Community and are all resources extensively used by 
residents of the area which has been identified for review.   Currently the Boars Hill Association 
delivers their publication to Wootton Village as this shares the same “Boars Hill” postal address were 
some areas of Boars Hill to be separated from the existing Parish, this would cause ill-feeling among 
those residents. 

Additionally, the area under review represents a significant portion of the Parish’s income from 
Precept and given that the loan on the Community Centre was taken with a term of 50 years, the 
result would be a significant increase of precept on the remaining population. 

Although different parts of the village, such as Old Wootton, Boars Hill, and the B4017 corridor, have 
their distinctive social and architectural characters, the village is a well-integrated community as is 
evidenced in the replies to the questionnaire sent out in preparing our Joint Neighbourhood Plan 
with St Helen Without (made December 2019). There was a strong feeling of belonging to a 
neighbourhood and a strong satisfaction with the area as a place to live.  This sense of community 
has been enhanced by the lack of significant housing development in the parish since 1970, apart 
from the relatively small Deerhurst Park.  While there will be some development over the next ten 
years - notably a new housing estate on the old industrial park - there will not be a substantial 
increase in population and little change to the village’s existing character.   

Wootton is a medium-sized rural parish with a diverse social, economic and, to a growing degree, 
ethnic profile, and the Wootton PC see no reason why its boundaries should be altered under the 
Community Governance Review.  It also feels that the views of this diverse community are well 
represented on the current Parish Council which has a positive gender, age and work experience 
balance and has ambitions to enhance further the parish’s pleasant and welcoming environment in 
the coming years. 

Page 91



  
 

2 
 

Wootton Parish Council 
c/o Clerk to the Parish 

32 Lamborough Hill 
Wootton, Abingdon 

OX13 6BZ 
 

Wootton Parish Council supports the change of name to the Wootton and Boars Hill Parish Council.  
There are several reasons for this. 

It would distinguish the Wootton/ Abingdon Council from the other Wootton Parish Council in 
Oxfordshire and the host of other Woottons in England (in Buckinghamshire, Hampshire, and so on). 

It seems strange that when the original council was established in the late nineteenth century that 
the proposed name was not adopted, given that the parish was formed from two hamlets and Boars 
Hill was developing fast as place to live for affluent Oxford dons, such as Sir Arthur Evans.  Indeed, 
on Social Media Apps, such as Nextdoor, the area “Boars Hill” covers the Wootton, Boars Hill, 
Henwwod and Whitecross, largely reflecting the existing Parish Boundary. 

The Parish Council recognizes that residents of Boars Hill have developed an understandable pride in 
maintaining the special visual aspect of their area and that some among them feel that the area’s 
unique heritage is not fully appreciated by other sections of the village.   Renaming the Parish 
Council would be one way of demonstrating that Boars Hill is a much-loved part of the village, whose 
artistic and intellectual history gives it an important place in the life of the county and the country, 
not just Wootton.   

Renamed or not, the Parish Council looks forward to working closely with the Boars Hill Association 
to maintain the beauty and character of this special area. It hopes, too, that a member of the 
Association will be willing to come on the Council and help us continue our vision of turning the 
entire village into a community that would have warmed the heart of Matthew Arnold and all the 
other poets and writers forever associated with this unique part of our parish. 

In summary, Wootton Parish Council wish for the existing Parish boundary to be maintained and we 
feel that given the Neighbourhood Plan has been made and covers the whole of our parish and that 
of St Helen Without PC it would be incredibly complicated to amend any boundary.  However, we 
would like the Parish to be renamed to be more inclusive of all the areas of our Parish and to 
differentiate ourselves from other similarly named parishes.  

 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Wendy Quigley 
Clerk to the Parish 

Page 92



 
 

CGR_G  

 

Parishes Affected 

Uffington 
 

Matter to be considered 

Increasing the number of parish councillors from six to seven 
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
None 
 

Committee’s draft proposal 
 
To increase the size of Uffington Parish Council from six to seven parish 
councillors. 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation  

Uffington Parish Council put forward the request and has expressed its 
support for the committee’s recommendation. 
 
Two further responses have been received during the consultation on the 
draft proposals – both in support of the proposed increase in the size of the 
parish council.  
 

Recommendation 

To increase the size of Uffington Parish Council from six to seven parish 
councillors.  
 

Justification for the final recommendation 

The National Association of Local Council (NALC) recommends that the 
minimum number of members of a parish council should be seven, and that 
this number should apply to all councils with an electorate up to 900.  

In respect of Uffington Parish Council’s request, a council size of seven 
councillors is reasonable having an electorate of approximately 650. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 13



Responses received in relation to the second round of consultation for 

CGR_G_Uffington 

 

Email response received 2 July 2022 

 

 

Email response received 5 July 2022 

  

  

Page 94



Email response received 29 July 2022 

  

 

  

 

Page 95



 
 

CGR_H  

 

Parishes Affected 

Wootton 
 

Matter to be considered 

A review of the parish name to reflect the settlement of Boars Hill  
 

Impact on district and county council boundaries  
 
None 
 

Summary of responses to the draft proposal consultation  

These are set out in the engagement summary document.   
 

Recommendation 

To make no change to the name of the parish.  
 

Justification for final recommendation 

At its meeting on 26 May 2022, the committee agreed to consult on the 
proposed name change. In doing so the committee noted that the initial 
engagement exercise showed support for the proposal and agreed to assess 
the extent of support or otherwise for the proposal and the impact on the 
identity and interests of the community. 

61.59% of those who responded to the consultation oppose the proposal.  

Whilst the name change would serve to better reflect the communities within 
the area of the parish, it is the case that the area known as Boars Hill covers a 
number of parishes. A name change, whilst seeking to improve community 
identity within the area, would be misleading. Many rural parishes do not 
include the details of each hamlet or community in their name but still achieve 
community identity.  

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 14



 Wootton Community Governance Review: we'd like 
your feedback 

 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 
a resident within the 
parish 

  
 

89.67% 217 

2 
someone who works 
within the parish 

 0.00% 0 

3 
a business / organisation 
operating within the 
parish 

  
 

1.65% 4 

4 
a visitor or interested 
party 

  
 

1.65% 4 

5 
a councillor (parish, 
district, county) 

  
 

2.48% 6 

6 
an officer (parish, district, 
county) 

  
 

0.41% 1 

7 Other (please specify):   
 

4.13% 10 

 
answered 242 

skipped 1 

Other (please specify): (10) 

1 Boars Hill resident 

2 i.e. a resident of Boars Hill 

3 I am a Boars Hill resident 

4 Boars hill resident  

5 Boars hill resident  

6 A RESIDENT OF BOARS HILL SUNNINGWELL PARISH 

7 There appears to be no option to oppose both proposals which I do 

8 Previous owner and renter of Boars Hill properties 

9 Priest-in-Charge St Peters Church, Wootton 

10 Live in neighbouring parish and spend much time in Wootton.  
 

 
 

2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 16 

Page 97



2. If you are responding as a business / organisation, council or body please provide 
its name:  

1 Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre  

2 Cumnor Parish Council 

3 The Greater World 

4 Sunningwell Parish Counci 

5 N/A 

6 HOME 

7 Oxford Pro Musica Singers 

8 Pharmacy 

9 University of Oxford 

10 personal 

11 Wootton Parish Council 

12 As Priest-in-Charge of St Peters Church 

13 Wootton parish council 

14 Sunningwell Parish Council 

15 Wootton Allotments  

16 Wootton Parish Council 
 

 
answered 16 

skipped 227 

 

3. To help us analyse responses, please provide your full postcode (e.g. OX12 1XX)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 228 

 
answered 228 

skipped 15 

 
  
 

4. Which proposal would you like to comment on: Tick all that apply.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 

Make no change to the 
boundary between 
Sunningwell Parish and 
Wootton and Cumnor 
parishes 

  
 

93.83% 228 

Page 98



4. Which proposal would you like to comment on: Tick all that apply.  

2 
Amend the name of 
Wootton parish to include 
the name Boars Hill 

  
 

68.31% 166 

 
answered 243 

skipped 0 

 
 
 
 
 
Wootton and Boars Hill parish name change  
 

9. How far do you support or oppose the proposal to amend the name of Wootton 
parish to include the name Boars Hill?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly support   
 

31.71% 52 

2 Tend to support   
 

5.49% 9 

3 Neither support or oppose   
 

0.61% 1 

4 Tend to oppose   
 

0.61% 1 

5 Strongly oppose   
 

61.59% 101 

6 Not sure  0.00% 0 

7 I don't have a view  0.00% 0 

 
answered 164 

skipped 79 

 

10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 83 

1 This would help reinforce the joint nature of the Parish and also help to distinguish it from the other 
Wootton in Oxfordshire and indeed other Wootton's further afield. 

2 The geographical area is known as boars hill currently sits within 4 Parishes and it is wholly 
disingenuous to amend the name of one Parish to include the name of Boars Hill. The recent 
survey undertaken by the Boars Hill association identified that the majority of residents within 
Boars Hill would prefer to have become a united community with the Parish of Sunningwell. 

3 The deeds to my house and the land registry both refer to here as Lower Wootton, Boars Hill . It’s 
still the same house.  

4 Sounds like a reasonable compromise abs reflects the area covered more accurately.  

Page 99



10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

5 I don’t care what it is called only what it does. Bow to the rich and allow the name change. 

6 This just feels more inclusive and should mitigate some of the Boars Hill Association concerns re 
their exclusion. 

7 The resident of Boars Hill play an integral part in our parish life and should rightly be included in the 
Parish name, just as Boars Hill is included in our official postal address in Wootton. 

8 Wootton should include Boars Hill 

9 We live in Wootton but we acknowledge that Boars Hill is a large geographical component of our 
parish. 

10 I am taken aback at this proposal as well and am confused how it could have come out of any 
effective consultation 

11 As a Boars Hill resident I identify much more with Sunningwell parish rather than Wootton 

12 The change of parish name would achieve absolutely nothing and would therefore be a pointless 
exercise. 

13 Boars Hill to be in own parish, combined with Sunningwell. 

14 None 

15 1. The name would be clearly misleading by seemingly subsuming the whole of Boars Hill within 
Wootton, which it is not and never has been. 
2. Boars Hill as a whole has no wish to become in name a part of the Parish of Wootton. 
3. Those residents of Wootton, who currently have a Boars Hill post code, need not have any 
concerns by the boundary change, that they would lose their OX1 postcode. Nothing need change. 

16 Not necessary to change the name, as part of Boars Hill is within Sunningwell parish. 

17 This ignores the majority support for the oroginal petition. 

18 Changing the name from “Wootton” to “Wootton and Boars Hill” would make no sense as half of 
Boars Hill is already in Sunningwell parish.  
 
Boars Hill makes up a very small percentage of Wootton parish. Wootton has three times the 
population of Sunningwell and, even after the requested change incorporating Boars Hill into 
Sunningwell parish, Wootton would remain substantially larger. This excludes any potential new 
housing developments which would make Wootton larger yet. 

19 I think Boars Hill should be consolidated into one parish and that parish should be Sunningwell. 

20 One of the main complaints Boars Hill residents have about being part of Wootton Parish is that 
our opinions on many matters were completely ignored and now you have done it again by not 
including in the choices available exactly what we are asking for, to become part of Sunningwell 
Parish. 

21 See my comments in response to previous question, which I repeat here. 

22 Wootton parish is mostly suburban and Boars Hill residents cannot be represented by Wootton 
parish in which they are a small minority. At least half of us are in the parish of Sunningwell, by 
which we should be represented, if necessary by moving the boundary to include us all in 
Sunningwell. 

23 This change has not been requested by the residents of Boars Hill. We DO NOT want to remain as 
a disconnected part of Wooton parish. We want to be joined with the other part of the Boars Hill 
community in the Sunningwell parish 

24 What is the point of changing the name of wootton to include boars hill when half of boars hill is not 
within wootton parish? Boars hill fits better with Sunningwell and would have a better voice within 
Sunningwell parish.  

25 Changing the name from “Wootton” to “Wootton and Boars Hill” would be a 
nonsense as half of Boars Hill is already in Sunningwell. So this must not 
be allowed to happen. 

Page 100



10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

26 The clear desire of Boars Hill residents is to combine their area with Sunningwell, with whom we 
have far more issues in common than with Cumnor of Wootton. We have carried out extensive 
consultation and a vote to this effect. We are puzzled, if not vexed, as to why this option is not 
included in the current proposals. The process now suggested appears wasteful and anti-
democratic by ignoring clearly stated wishes of residents. 

27 Strongly oppose as the residents of boars hill have already voted to become part of sunningwell 
parish. Shocked you are ignoring this vote. 

28 As said before we have already voted to join sunningwell parish and do not understand why our 
vote and wishes are being ignored. 

29 See previous comments. This is not the will of the residents  

30 A sizeable part of Boars Hill is outside of Wootton parish and lies within Sunningwell Parish. It 
would be nonsense (and confusing to many) to change the name to include Wootton when so 
much of Boars Hill is within Sunningwell parish.  

*31* It would be confusing to have this name as part of Boars Hill is within Sunningwell parish anyway. 
Please look at the petition and take note of local views.  

32 If the boundary is moved (as the Boar’s Hill residents wish) then Boar’s Hill isn’t in Wootton. If the 
boundary is not moved (against their wishes) then part of Boar’s Hill is in Sunningwell Parish so it 
is illogical to change the name  

33 there is no reason to incorpore B's Hill into Wootton, we ourselves at in the Sunningwell area 10 m 
from the Wootton limit which is in the middle of a wall...We do not want to be part of a different 
village. 

34 Only the ones I’ve already made previously.  

35 The Wootton Council does not represent Boars Hill and I strongly oppose the change. 

36 Boars Hill should be in the parish of Sunningwell, not Wootto, as requested by the majority of 
Boars Hill Residents. 

37 Again,this proposal does not take into account the majority view . 

38 I live at the end of Lincombe Lane spur, I strongly support changing our parish to Sunningwell. We 
feel as if we are part of Sunningwell not Wootton. I do not think just the name should change to 
include Wootton and Boars Hill 

39 Entirely unnecessary 

40 This proposal would make no sense with half of Boars Hill remaining in Wootton, and the majority 
of its residents wishing to be included in Sunningwell. 

41 Boars Hill is split between two parishes, so by calling Wootton Wootton and Boars Hill that is 
wrongly representing that all of Boars hill is within Wootton parish, which is not the case.  

42 This should be a vote only for boars hill  

43 I believe that the suggestion to change the name of Wootton Parish Council to Wootton and Boars 
Hill Parish Council makes no sense whatsoever when half of the Boars Hill area will remain part of 
the Sunningwell parish. Such a name would be erroneous and false and would leave the boars Hill 
residents who still live in the Sunningwell parish feeling even more confused by loss of identity. 

44 A large part of Boars Hill (old designation) has a strong connection to Old Wootton Village through 
the Church and C of E primary school which many people that I know have no wish to break. 
Boars Hill (old designation) and the Boars Hill post code area are strongly connected to Wootton 
PC because of shops, dentist, bus service etc. The local cricket club, whose grounds are owned by 
the Parish Council, is know as the Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club (and from what I can see 
are doing reasonably well in the league). 
In the past Wootton PC has rejected requests from Boars Hill residents to support public meetings 
in relation to the Oxford Cambridge Expressway. The grounds for rejection of such a public 
meeting were that 'we don't want to worry local residents unnecessarily' and that 'we know best'. 
Other request for help/support were also rejected by Wootton PC. It was the intransigence of 
Wootton PC to engage with the concerns of Boars Hill residents that prompted the attempt of 
Boars Hill to distance itself from Wootton PC. 

Page 101



10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

The current group of councillors on Wootton PC are more sympathetic to the concerns of Boars Hill 
residents, who really don't ask for very much generally but would actually like to be to listened to. 
Also, they need to be ready to embrace Boars Hill residents as candidates to fill the vacancies on 
the Parish Council. Under the past regime Boars Hill residents who have become Parish 
Councillors have been made so uncomfortably that they have resigned within months of being 
appointed. 
Finally, I would say that I have few problems about amending the name of Wootton PC (at least in 
the short term) because I think that Boars Hill has more connection with Wootton than with 
Sunningwell. The concern that some Boars Hill residents have is that if the Wootton PC name is 
changed to include Boars Hill ( cricket club precedent) what happens to the part of Boars Hill that is 
currently within Sunningwell? Perhaps all the more reason to give Boars Hill its own Parish 
Council. 

45 Boars Hill is closer to Sunningwell. We have closer links with Sunningwell, and are currently part of 
Sunningwell parish council. We do not wish to be moved against our will into a less 
rural/agricultural parish with which we have no links and no connection.  

46 See previous comments. We are currently part of Sunningwell parish and do not wish the will of 
Wootton or Cumnor to be permitted to change this against our will. 

47 This suggestion is untenable. Half of Boars Hill residences are actually in Sunningwell Parish. It 
would be confusing and is a blatant attempt of WPC to try to prevent Boars Hill being united as one 
parish in Sunningwell. It just doesn't make sense as Boars Hill is a very small portion of total 
Wootton population. This suggestion has been proposed only in response to the Boars Hill 
residents wanting to be in a single parish not split over 3 parishes. This is a nonsense and cannot 
be allowed. 

48 It is already a part of the address for most residents so formalising it will make no difference but 
might ease postal issues etc… 

49 You cannot change the name to Wootton and Boars Hill as half of the residences on Boars Hill are 
in Sunningwell Parish.  

50 I strongly support this name change to include Boars Hill. Boars Hill as a geological feature 
extends extensively through Wootton Parish and it can be argued that, with the exception of 
Lamborough Hill, the entire Parish is on the Hill. Before it was diverted in the 1930s a ditch ran 
continously with water from the top through Wootton Village and Wootton to Dry Sandford Parish. 
In the other direction the Hill definitely extends to Henwood and towards Cumnor in Wootton 
Parish. The majority of addresses in Wootton Parish have historically been written as Wootton, 
Boars Hill. Many Sat Navs and Online search engines already use Wootton - Boars Hill to 
distinguish between this Parish and Wootton near Woodstock and Wootton in Northamptonshire.  

51 We wish to remain in Sunningwell Parish. It reflects our agricultural environment and they have 
always been supportive of us and our needs.  
We certainly have NO wish to be taken over by Wootton parish which is mainly an increasingly 
residential parish.  
 
Boars Hill residents, who are presently included in Wootton, have expressed a two-thirds majority 
to leave Wootton and join Sunningwell Parish as they feel their views are being ignored to such an 
extent by Wootton Council, that those who have served on it have seen no purpose in remaining as 
serving members and have consequently resigned. 

52 The reasons BH residents want the change are two: (1) unite all BH under parish (2) separate from 
Wootton which over many years has provided administration consistently biased against BH. A 
change of name would address neither issue -- just a sticking plaster offered by Wootton 
councillors whose only real concern is to preserve the status quo. 

53 "pick simples for a cancer" 

54 I strongly oppose changing the name to Wootton and Boars Hill Parish as a large part of Boars Hill 
is in Sunningwell. I live in the part of Boars Hill that is in Sunningwell parish and for the Wootton 
Parish to include the name Boars Hill is ridiculous and complete nonsense. There could be 
widespread confusion if this was to happen. 

55 This is a cynical rouse to circumvent the overriding wish of Boars Hill residents to be part of 
Sunningwell parish! I view this proposal to be almost criminal given the recent voting wish of Boars 
Hill residents to join Sunningwell parish. The council that has tabled this motion should be 
thoroughly ashamed of themselves! 

Page 102



10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

56 There is no logic in such a suggestion, only more confusion.  

57 See previous comments mutatis mutandis 

58 This proposal would be misleading and incorrect 

59 Boars Hill residents overwhelmingly are against incorporation into Wootton Parish or, for the part of 
Boars Hill already part of that parish, against continuing to remain part of it. There is little natural 
affinity between Boars Hill and Wootton -- rather, a good deal of antipathy. There is natural affinity 
with Sunningwell, and a desire on the part of the vast majority of Boars Hill residents to remain or 
become part of Sunningwell parish (depending on which part of Boars Hill they live in). There 
seems no credible reason to have Boars Hill as part of Wootton parish, and to rename the parish in 
the face of Boars Hill residents' polled opinions seems gratuitous, indeed hostile. 

60 Residents living in the Wootton and Cumnor parts of Boars Hill have requested that the parish 
boundaries of Boars Hill are amended to include all of Boars Hill into a single parish, specifically 
into Sunningwell Parish. The democratic will of residents demonstrated less than a year ago by the 
Parish Boundary petition is clearly to be part of Sunningwell and not to be subsumed into the much 
larger Wootton parish. 

61 as above 

62 Half of Boars hill is already in sunningwell parish and Boars hill makes up a small proportion of 
Wootton parish so this does not make sense. Instead makes sense to move boundary to put all of 
boars hill into sunningwell and boars hill parish.  

63 Amending the name of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill would be misleading as not 
all of Boars Hill is part of Wootton parish.  

64 Well half of Boars Hill is in Sunningwell parish anyway so renaming the parish of Wootton to that of 
Wootton and Boars hill is a total nonsense 
do you have total idiots who dream up this rubbish? 

65 This suggestion does not take into account that a large majority of residents on Boars Hill would 
prefer to be properly a part of Sunningwell Parish. 

66 I do not believe the interests of Boars Hill resident's will be best served by this change as 
confirmed by recent resignations from Wootton Parish Council by Boars Hill residents. 

67 It’s like combining chalk with cheese. Nothing on common and nothing to link them.  

68 This will be confusing, when the parish only includes part of Boars Hill. We live in Boars Hill, but 
not in Wootton parish. 

69 Two thirds of residents living in the Wootton part of Boars Hill signed the petition requesting the 
change of parish boundary, specifically to include all of Boars Hill into Sunningwell Parish.  
STRONGLY OPPOSE the proposal to amend the name of Wootton parish to include the name 
Boars Hill. Half of Boars Hill is already in Sunningwell.  
The request was for a change of parish boundary not a play with the name! 

70 This proposal has no merit in the context of the Terms of Reference. 
 
In particular, the following four reasons indicate the proposal is a non-starter: 
 
1. Boars Hill is split roughly 50/50 between Wootton Parish and Sunningwell Parish. To attach the 
name Boars Hill to Wootton implies Boar's Hill in its entirety is located with Wootton. That would be 
a major misrepresentation. 
 
2. If, in the alternative, Sunningwell were to do the same, Wootton Parish would object on the same 
grounds. There is no case to say either Parish has the right, by so mis-naming itself, contrary to the 
facts.  
 
3. Residents views of all Boars Hill have not been sought. This is a single glaring omission which 
should make the proposal fail. The change would be unreasonable without public representation. In 
fact, a private survey in the possession of the Council has found residents do not want this 
proposal; they want to be with another Parish, Sunningwell. 
 
4. The approximately 50% of Boars Hill is a small part of Wootton Parish and does not warrant 

Page 103



10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

including in the name. Dry Sandford would have equal of more population and therefore it follows, 
that the name would have to be "Wootton, Dry Sandford and Boars Hill Parish Council" which is 
clearly too long a name. The Parish should retain its existing name since Wootton is the majority 
element of the population. 
 
On the basis of these critical and each over-riding reasons I urge the Council to withdraw and 
reject this proposal. I suggest proceeding this proposal will bring the Parish into disrepute, which 
would be a shame given its otherwise excellent work for the residents of Wootton. 

71 This is purely political with NO benefit to residents. I am very surprised it is even raised. 

72 Boars Hill residents overwhelmingly want to be part of Sunningwell Parish. This has been proved 
by a local vote - this vote should be respected by the parish councils. 

73 Boars Hill residents strongly wish to be part of Sunningwell parish as evidenced by a recent vote of 
residents. The councils should respect the outcome of this vote and not try to circumvent it. 

74 We as a Parish Council have only recently been made aware of the feeling of a lack of inclusion of 
some residents on Boars Hill. We therefore think it’s imperative that the name is changed as a 
small step to making them feel more part of the Parish. We currently have two spare vacancies on 
the PC and have offered these seats to anyone on Boars Hill. In addition, I, as chair of the PC, 
have asked to see if I can attend any meetings that might occur for residents in the area. I’m still 
awaiting a positive response but we’re truly trying to be more inclusive now we’re aware some 
people think it’s a problem.  

75 I see that Wootton parish are now trying to prevent the requested boundary change by suggesting 
a change in the parish name which would be very confusing. A moment’s thought would soon 
reveal the stupidity of this as Sunningwell parish could ask for the same and if you support Wootton 
you cannot then refuse Sunningwell. Clearly neither parish should try to include Boars Hill in their 
name as, at present, neither has a monopoly on Boars Hill. It seems to me that Wootton are just 
trying to keep the western part of Boars Hill, which has asked to leave, as they need their council 
tax to repay the loan they had to take out to build the fancy village hall they could not afford! 

76 For many years, and certainly since its reforming in 1998, the cricket club in Wootton has the full 
title Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club and has played under this name in both the Oxfordshire 
Cricket Association and Cherwell Leagues since joining both leagues. Not only with the cricket 
club, but throughout the village, Boars Hill residents have been welcomed to clubs and societies 
run in the Village both in the Community Centre and beyond. It seems very appropriate that the 
Parish Council adopt the example of the cricket club and include Boars Hill in their title to make the 
inclusion clear. 

77 It will clarify the important place that BH has within the parish. 

78 I think this would be a good idea, Wootton already has Wootton and Boars hill cricket club. 

79 The attempt by Wootton Parish Council to add Boars Hill to their name is clearly an afterthought in 
an attempt to placate disatisfied residents whose council tax funding for their costly village hall they 
are loath to lose. Such a name change would also make no sense at all since half of Boars Hill is 
already part of Sunningwell and thus Wootton cannot claim the name Boars Hill any more than 
Sunningwell could with the existing boundaries. It is astonishing that those in charge of Wootton 
PC should even suggest this knowing the confusion it would cause – something which perhaps the 
VoWH DC should have pointed out to them. 

80 To change the name of Wootton Parish to include Boars Hill when not all of Boars Hill is in the 
Parish of Wootton will be massively undemocratic. The door step survey gathers by the BHA in 
2021 clearly demonstrates that a significant position of the households in the Boar's hill area do not 
identify as being part of Wootton, and to force this change upon them without their explicit consent 
would be entirely undemocratic and further reduce the faith and support the general population has 
in our public bodies, elected or employed. My request is that no change is made at this time and a 
single engagement that considers all appropriate options is planned after the next local election. 

81 We consider that the request by Wootton Parish Council (WPC) to add Boars Hill to its name at this 
time is just a belated attempt to mollify residents living in the western part of Boars Hill who voted 
so significantly to leave Wootton parish. This request by WPC to include the name of Boars Hill 
should be summarily dismissed as a non sequitur. Notwithstanding SPC’s request that the parish 
boundaries be changed, if nevertheless they were to remain unchanged, it would make no sense at 
all, and indeed be confusing, to have part of Boars Hill linked by name with one parish and the 
other part not linked to the other parish. If the WPC request for a name change were to be granted 

Page 104



10. If you have any comments or suggestions in connection with amending the name 
of Wootton parish to include the name Boars Hill, please provide them below:  

then ipso facto a similar request from Sunningwell PC which includes eastern Boars Hill would 
have to be accepted. SPC considers that neither parish name should be changed. A name change 
for part only of Boars Hill would also infuriate the residents of the community of Boars Hill itself who 
have made no such request. 

82 This will give the parish a more unique identity 

83 Response below received via email. 
 
Wootton Parish Council supports the change of name to the Wootton and Boars Hill Parish 
Council. There are several reasons for this. 
 
It would distinguish the Wootton/ Abingdon Council from the other Wootton Parish Council in 
Oxfordshire and the host of other Woottons in England (in Buckinghamshire, Hampshire, and so 
on).  
 
It seems strange that when the original council was established in the late nineteenth century that 
the proposed name was not adopted, given that the parish was formed from two hamlets and 
Boars Hill was developing fast as place to live for affluent Oxford dons, such as Sir Arthur Evans. 
Indeed, on Social Media Apps, such as Nextdoor, the area “Boars Hill” covers the Wootton, Boars 
Hill, Henwwod and Whitecross, largely reflecting the existing Parish Boundary. 
 
The Parish Council recognizes that residents of Boars Hill have developed an understandable 
pride in maintaining the special visual aspect of their area and that some among them feel that the 
area’s unique heritage is not fully appreciated by other sections of the village. Renaming the Parish 
Council would be one way of demonstrating that Boars Hill is a much-loved part of the village, 
whose artistic and intellectual history gives it an important place in the life of the county and the 
country, not just Wootton. 
 
Renamed or not, the Parish Council looks forward to working closely with the Boars Hill 
Association to maintain the beauty and character of this special area. It hopes, too, that a member 
of the Association will be willing to come on the Council and help us continue our vision of turning 
the entire village into a community that would have warmed the heart of Matthew Arnold and all the 
other poets and writers forever associated with this unique part of our parish. 
 
In summary, Wootton Parish Council wish for the existing Parish boundary to be maintained and 
we feel that given the Neighbourhood Plan has been made and covers the whole of our parish and 
that of St Helen Without PC it would be incredibly complicated to amend any boundary. However, 
we would like the Parish to be renamed to be more inclusive of all the areas of our Parish and to 
differentiate ourselves from other similarly named parishes. 

 

 
answered 83 

skipped 160 

 
 

11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 57 

1 Whenever boundaries are reviewed there is always in my mind a suspicion of gerrymandering. This 
suspicion would be allayed by more open consultation before the publication of the final documents. 

2 The strength of feeling in the Community is very clear and should be taken into consideration. The 
majority of the parish does not wish to be divided. 

3 As I live within Wootton village it does not seem to me theres any practical sense for BoarsHill 
residence requesting to leave Wootton parish as Sunningwell Village have very little to offer, if this 
did come about with the residents of Boars Hill Reticence still expect to use all the amenities which 

Page 105



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

they are no doubt enjoying at this moment of Wootton Parish 
There is also the point to make hear of the financing this move of those without any contribution to 
the parishes. 

4 None, totally agree to keep the make up of the community as it currently is 

5 Don’t make any changes. Those in Wootton recognise ourselves as being part of the wider area  

6 Sunningwell should be included in the name. 

7 I really appreciate you sharing this info and asking for feedback  

8 Not at this time unfortunately as I have only just moved to wootton village and it would be a shame if 
they include boars hill in the boundary so I oppose it.  

9 no 

10 I am disappointed that after significant Boars Hill community commentary that these are the two 
poorly considered and designed points for consultation. It reinforces the idea that current governance 
processes are not working effectively. 

11 Listen to the Boars Hill Association who are more closely involved in the community here and able to 
speak for us with authority. They know the feelings of the community. 

12 None 

13 It make sense to join Sunningwell parish as all residents of Boars Hill would be united, under one 
governance structure, which must be better for local democracy.  

14 I am shocked to find that the proposal made by the majority of Boars Hill residents has been totally 
ignored. Why doesn't Wootton parish listen, even to its own Boars Hill residents? 

15 See my comments to previous question which I repeat here. I wish Boars Hill to be joined as a parish 
with Sunningwell. 

16 A massive planning application by Peking University Business School is pending, but it lies on the 
boundary of Wootton parish. while much of the site is in Sunningwell. Division of interest between the 
two parishes is highly undesirable, especially as it separated from a nature conservation area in 
Sunningwell, by a two strand barbed wire fence, and the whole area is in the Green Belt.  

17 No. I expect you will do what you want despite the clearly expressed view of boars hill residents to 
change the boundaries so that all of boars hill is within Sunningwell parish.  

18 No further comment. 

19 Residents of boars hill have voted to join sunningwell parish council.  

20 As before we have already voted to join sunningwell parish and strongly oppose your options. 

21 In a recent poll two thirds of Boars Hill residents who voted wished the boundaries to be changed so 
that Boars Hill fell wholly within Sunningwell Parish. Why isn't this option made available to vote 
upon? 

22 Please refer to the petition already given to you.  

23 It is very odd that the question says “no change” when that is not what the Boar’s Hill residents 
wished.  

24 why is the district counsel interfering in parish business and trying to overturn parish council 
decisions? 

25 Yes. Speak to the Boars Association Chairman and members. I accept and support their views. 

26 Listen to the residents of Boars Hill 

27 No 

28 Unite Boars Hill in Sunningwell Parish 

29 I thought we had already voted to change the boundaries to join Sunningwell. Why has this been 
raised again? It doesn’t feel very democratic.  

Page 106



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

30 Very poor questions to vote on. Most un democratic 

31 No 

32 To allow the part of Boars Hill that at present is within the Wootton parish to be taken into the 
Sunningwell parish is the only sensible move that will reinforce community representation and action. 

33 I think I have already made all the comments that it is necessary/relevant to make, BUT: 
 
Boars Hill is a very close-knit community. The Boars Hill Association, started by Maud and Abi 
Rosenthal about 50 years go, have a programme of talks and social events which local residents 
take part in. Historically, Boars Hill is know nationally and internationally because of its connections 
academically with the University but also because of the artist, sculptors (such as Oscar Nemon) and 
poets - too many to mention (although get a copy of "Oxford's Parnassus" by Philip Stewart if you 
want to know about our poets) - who have made Boars Hill their home. It has connections with 
Laurence of Arabia and has been referred to in such novels at "Brideshead Revisited". 
 
Essentially, I get back to the fact that Boars Hill is unique locally and deserves its own Parish Council 
in early (2 years) course. 

34 It would have been helpful if this review had taken into account the petition which was already run 
concerning this issue, and which demonstrated a clear desire on the part of the majority (2/3) of 
Boars Hill residents to be part of Sunningwell parish. Setting up a review in way that has been 
performed here presupposes a specific outcome, and it is clear from the previous petition that that 
outcome is not the one favoured by a majority of residents. 
I do not understand how the opinion of Wootton residents (who outnumber Boars Hill residents) 
should not be allowed to influence any suggested move for Boars Hill residents out of their current 
Sunningwell parish. This is surely a matter for Boars Hill and Sunningwell. 

35 Please note the previous petition stating that the majority of Boars Hill residents would like to be 
united in a single parish with Sunningwell - NOT with Wootton or Cumnor. 

36 I am saddened that the proposal to move the boundary appears to have been driven by the 'Boars 
Hill Residents Association' whose members dominate Sunningwell Parish Council. These two 
organisations have in effect self proclaimed themselves as the only residents of Boars Hill. As stated 
previously they are incorrect. Boars Hill extends far beyond the proposed boundary change. I am 
upset that Sunningwell Parish Council has taken the consultation of the Boars Hill Residents 
Association as being the wishes of all of Boars Hill. If the proposal is supported to change the 
boundary I fear it will have been driven by affluence and a desire for segregation from others less 
well-off and I want no part of it. If the boundary change goes ahead then it would over-dominate the 
less well off Residents in Sunningwell Parish. The Wootton & Boars Hill Parish name change is a 
good idea. As stated previously Wootton Parish is predominately on Boars Hill and is reflected in 
houses addresses already. 

37 DO NOT MERGE WITH WOTTON  

38 We are shocked and greatly disturbed that the petition by the two-thirds majority of residents of 
Boars Hill included at present in Wootton and Cumnor Parishes to join Sunningwell Parish has been 
completely ignored,  

39 I responded earlier -- two responses, one to each question (it seems one combined response was 
not allowed). 
In my response to the name change proposal I might have ticked 'strongly support' when I meant to 
check 'strongly oppose'. 
I am submitting this response now in order to change my earlier response to what I really meant: 
strongly oppose. 
<redacted> 
<redacted> 

40 Please seriously consider other proposals as the ones that have been suggested are unsatisfactory. 

41 It is very clear that the vast majority of Boars Hill residents wish to be part of Sunningwell parish. The 
local councils should agree to the wishes of Boars Hill residents and not play games with motions 
tabled like these 2! 

42 The substantial majority of those residents of Boars Hill who at the moment fall within Wootton have 
clearly supported the amalgamation of the Whole of Boars Hill within Sunningwell.  

Page 107



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

43 You appear to have ignored the petition change of boundary issued some months ago... Why? 

44 No. 

45 There is no reason to change traditional parish boundaries as far as I can see apart from perhaps 
vanity which should not be encouraged or supported in these matters.  

46 The proposals seem perverse, and fly in the face of reason and the opinions of those most directly 
affected by the proposals.Please reconsider, and consider the third proposal -- to make all of Boars 
Hill part of Sunningwell Parish. Thank you 

47 The review should reflect the democratically expressed wishes of the residents of the Wootton and 
Cumnor parts of Boars Hill to be part of Sunningwell parish. 

48 The Governance Review has come up with two proposals which do not reflect the wishes of the 
residents of Boars Hill at all. The vast majority of Boars Hill residents want to belong to a single 
parish and for that parish to be Sunningwell. Neither wish is reflected in the two proposals, which 
seems perplexing and undemocratic. 

49 A short time ago I did complete this survey but think that I failed to submit it, therefore I am 
completing again for submission. 

50 It's not clear where the proposal for change came from, or that it delivers any benefit to the residents 
of Boars Hill. Is this a squabble between the existing parish councils over money? 
Uniting Boars Hill into a separate parish would seem to provide a single area with common interests 
across it. I have no idea whether this would work in terms of process or finances. 

51 Proper consideration should be given to the recent boundary change request on behalf of the Boars 
Hill community. The relevant councils should proactively engage with local residents expressing 
reasonable comments and wishes. During this recent process that engagement has not always been 
evident. Interested parties have been excluded from relevant communications from the authorities. 
Some political maneuvering at the highest level has been apparently evidenced. 

52 I would expect to hear in advance about these proposals. Democracy depends on voters being able 
to consider proposals with more involvemnet of the Council officers. 

53 Respect the outcome of the Boars Hill residents vote to be part of Sunningwell parish. 

54 In Summary I strongly support the proposal NOT to make a boundary change and to rename the 
Parish for the following reasons: 
 
1. History 
 
The civil parish of Wootton has existed for more than a century and today is an evolving, dynamic 
community with a genuine identity. 
 
Until the late nineteenth century, the hamlets of Wootton and Old Boars Hill were outlying parts of 
Cumnor parish. Since then they have formed a separate parish with the same boundaries as today 
and over the years have developed into a single large village of some 3,000 inhabitants, centred 
around the Besselsleigh Rd shops, the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre and the 
Bystander Public House. Although different parts of the village, such as Old Wootton, Boars Hill, and 
the B4017 corridor, have their distinctive social and architectural characters, the village is a well-
integrated community, as is evidenced in the replies to the questionnaire sent out in preparing our 
Joint Neighbourhood Plan with St Helen Without (made December 2019). This showed a strong 
feeling of belonging to a neighbourhood and strong satisfaction with the area as a place to live. 
Wootton is an economically and socially diverse community with an evolving ethnic mix which 
reflects the present character of Britain in the twenty-first century. 
 
2. Administration 
 
Wootton Parish Council is in the fortunate position of having made a Neighbourhood Plan that gives 
the Council and its constituents a legally binding say in the future development of the existing parish. 
 
Wootton Parish Council (and St Helen Without Parish Council, as it was a joint plan) have had a fully 
made Neighbourhood Plan in place since 2019. Neighbourhood Plans that have already been 
finalised and adopted cannot be revoked even if parish boundaries are changed. Thus, our Plans’ 
policies will remain in place and be enforced for the area of land that they cover, even if that land 
becomes part of a different parish. Moreover, any amendments made to our Neighbourhood Plan in 

Page 108



11. Do you have any other comments that you would like to make on the Sunningwell, 
Wootton and Cumnor Community Governance Review 2022?  

the future would still apply to Boars Hill, and Sunningwell Parish Council would have to apply those 
new Neighbourhood Plan policies. In addition, as Neighbourhood Plans’ areas cannot overlap, 
Sunningwell Parish Council cannot create a Neighbourhood Plan that includes the area of ours. 
Moving Boars Hill into Sunningwell Parish, therefore, opens up a can of worms. 
 
3. Finances 
 
The boundary change would have a detrimental effect on the finances of Wootton Parish Council 
and its ability to meet its current obligations and aims. 
 
In 2010, Wootton Parish Council took out a government loan of £60,000 to support the 
redevelopment of the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre, a vital parish amenity. The loan 
was for fifty years at a fixed interest rate of 4.6 per cent. Each year the Council makes repayments of 
£3,076.60, and the current outstanding loan in £55,003.91. The total cost of repayment over 50 
years is £153, 830. In consequence, Wootton Parish Council is committed to putting aside £3,000 
p.a. to pay off the loan until 2060. At present, Wootton Parish Council receives a precept of c. 
£60,000. This is a large enough sum to allow the Council to put aside £3,000 per annum to pay off 
the loan without undue difficulty. Were Boars Hill to be detached from Wootton, the precept would be 
considerably reduced, as the precept is determined by the size of the population, and the percentage 
of the budget dedicated each year to paying off the loan increased. This would mean that the Council 
would no longer have the same amount of money each year to enhance traffic-controlling measures, 
which is a present priority, and the broader quality of life in the parish to which it is committed in 
accordance with its made Neighbourhood Plan. With a lower precept, for instance, it would not have 
been possible to create the recently established Children’s Community Park opposite the church, 
which each year is being improved. 
 
4. Fairness 
 
The residents of Boars Hill have always made full use of the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community 
Centre and belong to many of the societies that enjoy its facilities. 
 
As Sunningwell Parish has no equivalent Community Centre, the Boars Hill residents will continue to 
do use WADSCC, just as they will continue to use the other amenities in the village, such as the 
cricket club and field (already called The Wootton and Boars Hill Cricket Club), primary school, St 
Peter’s church and the community park. All these community facilities are supported financially by 
Wootton Parish Council either directly or indirectly (through a grant to the Wootton Primary School 
PTA to provide laptops for home learning during lockdown, for instance). It seems very unjust that 
the residents of a new, smaller Wootton Parish should pay a higher proportion per head towards 
repaying the Community Centre loan and maintaining other existing amenities in the village, while 
residents of Boars Hill, who use these facilities, contribute nothing at all. It is all the more unfair that 
as the overall precept will be smaller, the amount available to spend on these local amenities will be 
reduced. 

55 It is quite surprising and extremely disappointing to find that the VoWH District Council seems to 
have gone out of its way to circumvent the clearly expressed wishes of our Boars Hill community. 

56 The process has been really confusing and I didn’t realise we needed to complete a second survey 
having already done one  

57 No other comments apart from it would be a shame. Wootton has a lot of facilities and hardworking 
members of our Parish try their best for our community with little funding as it is. 

 

 
answered 57 

skipped 186 

 

Page 109



  
 

1 
 

Wootton Parish Council 
c/o Clerk to the Parish 

32 Lamborough Hill 
Wootton, Abingdon 

OX13 6BZ 
 

28th July 2022 

VWHDC Community Governance Review (2022) 
Response to the Proposal NOT to change the existing Parish Boundary and to the proposal to 

change Wootton Parish Council’s name to Wootton and Boars Hill Parish Council. 

Wootton Parish Council wishes to express its support in retaining the existing Parish Boundary and 
to rename Wootton Parish to Wootton and Boars Hill. 

Despite the Vale of White Horse DC’s link to the online survey being published after the 
publication of the Community Magazine the Parish Council has obtained 234 signatures on a 
petition to demonstrate the desire of residents to maintain the existing boundary. 

The Parish centers around the Wootton and Dry Sandford Community Centre and Pre-School, the 
Boars Hill and Wootton Cricket Club, the Community Park, all of which receive significant financial 
support from Wootton Parish Council in addition to the Bystander Public House and the Besselsleigh 
Road shops, which are at the heart of the Community and are all resources extensively used by 
residents of the area which has been identified for review.   Currently the Boars Hill Association 
delivers their publication to Wootton Village as this shares the same “Boars Hill” postal address were 
some areas of Boars Hill to be separated from the existing Parish, this would cause ill-feeling among 
those residents. 

Additionally, the area under review represents a significant portion of the Parish’s income from 
Precept and given that the loan on the Community Centre was taken with a term of 50 years, the 
result would be a significant increase of precept on the remaining population. 

Although different parts of the village, such as Old Wootton, Boars Hill, and the B4017 corridor, have 
their distinctive social and architectural characters, the village is a well-integrated community as is 
evidenced in the replies to the questionnaire sent out in preparing our Joint Neighbourhood Plan 
with St Helen Without (made December 2019). There was a strong feeling of belonging to a 
neighbourhood and a strong satisfaction with the area as a place to live.  This sense of community 
has been enhanced by the lack of significant housing development in the parish since 1970, apart 
from the relatively small Deerhurst Park.  While there will be some development over the next ten 
years - notably a new housing estate on the old industrial park - there will not be a substantial 
increase in population and little change to the village’s existing character.   

Wootton is a medium-sized rural parish with a diverse social, economic and, to a growing degree, 
ethnic profile, and the Wootton PC see no reason why its boundaries should be altered under the 
Community Governance Review.  It also feels that the views of this diverse community are well 
represented on the current Parish Council which has a positive gender, age and work experience 
balance and has ambitions to enhance further the parish’s pleasant and welcoming environment in 
the coming years. 

Page 110



  
 

2 
 

Wootton Parish Council 
c/o Clerk to the Parish 

32 Lamborough Hill 
Wootton, Abingdon 

OX13 6BZ 
 

Wootton Parish Council supports the change of name to the Wootton and Boars Hill Parish Council.  
There are several reasons for this. 

It would distinguish the Wootton/ Abingdon Council from the other Wootton Parish Council in 
Oxfordshire and the host of other Woottons in England (in Buckinghamshire, Hampshire, and so on). 

It seems strange that when the original council was established in the late nineteenth century that 
the proposed name was not adopted, given that the parish was formed from two hamlets and Boars 
Hill was developing fast as place to live for affluent Oxford dons, such as Sir Arthur Evans.  Indeed, 
on Social Media Apps, such as Nextdoor, the area “Boars Hill” covers the Wootton, Boars Hill, 
Henwwod and Whitecross, largely reflecting the existing Parish Boundary. 

The Parish Council recognizes that residents of Boars Hill have developed an understandable pride in 
maintaining the special visual aspect of their area and that some among them feel that the area’s 
unique heritage is not fully appreciated by other sections of the village.   Renaming the Parish 
Council would be one way of demonstrating that Boars Hill is a much-loved part of the village, whose 
artistic and intellectual history gives it an important place in the life of the county and the country, 
not just Wootton.   

Renamed or not, the Parish Council looks forward to working closely with the Boars Hill Association 
to maintain the beauty and character of this special area. It hopes, too, that a member of the 
Association will be willing to come on the Council and help us continue our vision of turning the 
entire village into a community that would have warmed the heart of Matthew Arnold and all the 
other poets and writers forever associated with this unique part of our parish. 

In summary, Wootton Parish Council wish for the existing Parish boundary to be maintained and we 
feel that given the Neighbourhood Plan has been made and covers the whole of our parish and that 
of St Helen Without PC it would be incredibly complicated to amend any boundary.  However, we 
would like the Parish to be renamed to be more inclusive of all the areas of our Parish and to 
differentiate ourselves from other similarly named parishes.  

 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Wendy Quigley 
Clerk to the Parish 

Page 111


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Community Governance Review - final recommendations
	7 Community Governance Review - Grove
	Vale CGR_A Grove, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	8 Community Governance Review - Grove Technology Park
	Vale CGR_B Grove and East Challow, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	9 Community Governance Review - Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor and Fyfield and Tubney
	Vale CGR_C_Kingston Bagpuize-Fyfield Tubney, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appx A KBS village newsletter, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix B) Fyfield & Tubney letter, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	10 Community Governance Review - North Hinksey (parish name change)
	Vale CGR_D North Hinksey, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	11 Community Governance Review - South Hinksey and Kennington
	Vale CGR_E South Hinksey & Kennington, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix A) South Hinksey map, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix B) South Hinksey map 2, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix C) South Hinksey image, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix D) South Hinksey image 2, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix E) South Hinksey image 3, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	12 Community Governance Review - Sunningwell (Wootton and Cumnor)
	Vale CGR_F Sunningwell, Wootton and Cumnor, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Appendix A) BHA letter, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Wootton Parish Council letter, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	13 Community Governance Review - Uffington
	Vale CGR_G_Uffington (fully redacted), 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee

	14 Community Governance Review - Wootton
	Vale CGR_H Wootton, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
	Wootton Parish Council letter, 12/09/2022 Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee


